NEVADA
COMMISSION ON TOURISM

Wednesday, September 19, 2018
1:00 P.M.

MEETING LOCATION:

Laxalt Building
401 N. Carson Street, 2™ Floor
Carson City, NV 89701

Las Vegas Video Location
Division of Tourism — Conference Room
4000 S. Eastern Ave. Suite 240
Las Vegas, NV 89119

Phone Conference Call Number:
888-363-4735
Access Code 4878739






[RAVEL NEVADA

NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
Regular Meeting of the Commission on Tourism
Wednesday, September 19, 2018 - 1:00 P.M.

MEETING LOCATION: VIDEQ CONFERENCE LOCATION:
NCOT — Laxalt Building Tourism Office — Las Vegas

401 N. Carson St. 2™ Floor 4000 S. Eastern Ave. #240
Carson City, NV 89701 Las Vegas, NV 89119

TELECONFERENCE NUMBER:
888-363-4735; Access Code 4878739

COMMISSIONERS
Lt. Governor Mark Hutchison, Chair*
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair* Don Newman* Steve Hill*
Herb Santos, Jr.* Mike Vaswani* Phil DeLone*
Denice Miller* Kris Sanchez* Brian Krolicki*
Bob Cashell* Bob Stoldal Joe O'Neil
Richard Arnold *Voting members

THIS MEETING 1S IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE “NEVADA OPEN MEETING LAW"” AND HAS BEEN PROPERLY
NOTICED AND POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism, Carson City, Nevada
Legislative Counsel Bureau, Carson City and Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Museum, Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Library, Carson City, Nevada
Las Vegas-Clark County Library, Windmill Branch, Las Vegas, Nevada
Reno Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority, Reno, Nevada

Websites: www.TravelNevada.biz and www.notice.nv.gov

STATEMENT OF THE COMMISSION

e Action may be taken an those items denoted “For Possible Action”.
e |tems on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.



Nevada Commission on Tourism
September 19, 2018 | Agenda

STATEMENT OF THE COMMISSION - Continued

Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration.

An item may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time.

Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time
considerations, the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous
speakers.

No action may be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until that matter has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken (NRS 241.020).
Meetings are audio-recorded as part of the public record. Speakers are requested to identify
themselves before speaking.

Note: Please provide NCOT with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if
you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes.

AGENDA

A. Opening

Call to Order and Confirmation of Proper Posting — Lt. Governor Hutchison
Roll Call and Determination of Quorum— Lt. Governor Hutchison

B. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and
speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

C. For Possible Action — Approval of Minutes

Approval of the June 20, 2018 NCOT Meeting Minutes
Approval of the lune 25, 2018 NCOT Special Meeting Minutes {grant approvals)

D. Introduction of New Commissioners

Kris Sanchez
Steve Hill
loe O'Neil

E. Nevada Governor’'s Global Tourism Summit Update

November 12-14, 2018, Silver Legacy Hotel at THE ROW, Reno, Nevada

2|FPage



F. Agency Reports
F1.

F2.

F3.

Fa.

F5.

G. Upcoming Meetings

Nevada Commission on Tourism
September 19, 2018 | Agenda

Chair Report

Division of Tourism Update

F2.1 Quarterly Staff Update (April - June 2018)

F2.2 Final FY18 Year End Revenues and Expenditures
F2.3 FY19 RFP / RFQ Overview

F2.4 Introduction of New Staff

Marketing Update

F3.1 Review of marketing goals and timeline for new consultants.

F3.2 For Possible Action — Review and approve of the recommendation of the
Marketing subcommittee to use the existing TravelNevada logo as the
primary trademark, replacing “Nevada A World Within. A State Apart.” for
use in all consumer marketing.

Nevada Magazine Update

Division of Museums & History Update

December 17, 2018, 1:60 pm - Full Cornmission Meeting

H. Commissioner Comments

I. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers
are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

J. For Possible Action - Adjournment

The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241.020{2} by contacting Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant, Nevada Commission on Tourism, {775) 687-0621 or by email to
ddykes@travelnevada.com, Materials are available from the Nevada Commission on Tourism office, 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada and online at www.travelnevada.biz

Persons with disabilities who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting should notify Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes at the Nevada Commission on Tourism at (775) 687-0621 or ddykes@travelnevada.com.

3|Page







June 20, 2018
NCOT Meeting

Draft Minutes
For Approval

NEVADA

TravelNevada.com

<







Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
June 20, 2018

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 1:00 p.m. on June 20, 2018 at 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701 and by video conference to 555 E. Washington Avenue #5100, Las
Vegas, NV 89101

Cali to Order
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair, called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

Commissioners Present:
Lieutenant Governor Mark A. Hutchison, Chair
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair
Don Newman

Rossi Ralenkotter

Herb Santos, Jr.

Bob Cashell

Brian Krolicki

Bob Stoldal

Denise Miller

Phil DeLone

Mike Vaswani

Julia Arger

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Bob Morse
Richard Arnold

Staff present:
David Peterson, Interim Director
Sarah Bradley, DAG

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

CARANO: Good afternoon, everyone, Cindy Carano, Vice Chair of the Nevada Commission
on Tourism. I'd like to call the regular meeting to order. Today is June 20th at
1:00 p.m., ! being in Reno on the phone, and | know that several people are in
Carson City and | would assume several peaple in Las Vegas. So, | would like to
confirm that there was proper posting of this meeting; is that true?



PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

CARANO:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

CARANO:

PETERSCN:

DELONE:

PETERSON:

NEWMAN:

PETERSON:

CASHELL:

PETERSON:

VASWANI:

PETERSCN:

KROLICKI:

PETERSON:

ARGER:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | june 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes, Cindy. For the record, David Peterson. Lieutenant Governor Hutchison?
I'm here.
Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. | will turn the meeting over to you.

Thank you very much, Vice Chair Carano for taking over for me and appreciate
that, but Mr. Peterson, please continue the roll call.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. Cindy Carano?
Present on the phone.

Commissioner DelLone?

Present.

we'll mark Bob Morse as absent and excused. Commissioner Miller?
Commissioner Newman?

Prasent.

Commissioner Ralenkotter? Herb, we believe, is on his way, so we'll mark him
present when he arrives. Commissioner Cashell?

Here on the phone.

Thank you. Commissioner Vaswani.

On the phone.

Thank you, Mike. Commissioner Krolicki?
Here.

Thank you. We have a quorum, Lieutenant Governor. And Commissioner
Arger?

Here.

Please mark Commissioner Arnold absent excused. Commissioner Stoldal?



STOLDAL:

PETERSON:

BORDELOVE:

PETERSON:

MILLER:

PETERSON:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

Approval of Minutes

HUTCHISON:

KROLICKI:

HUTCHISON:

CASHELL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Present.

Thank you. And we also have Michael Detmer [phonetic] with the Las Vegas
AG's Office on the phone as well | believe. Michael, are you on? Michael?

Rosalie Bordelove is here.
Okay. We do have a quorum.
You have Denice Miller on the phone.

Okay. Thank you Commissioner. We do have a quorum, Lieutenant Governor.

Okay, great, and we've got Deputy AG Rosalie Bordelove on call here right next
to me, so we're well represented. Thank you very much, Mr. Peterson. Let's
move on to Agenda Item B, which is Public Comment. Are there any members
of the public in Carson City who would like to come forward and address the
Commission at this time?

No, Lieutenant Governor.

All right, thank you very much. Any members in Las Vegas who would like to
come forward and address the Commission at this time? I'm not seeing any
here, either, so we will close out Agenda Item B.

Agenda Item C, Approval of the Minutes. Have all of the Members of the
Commission had an opportunity to take a look at the March 29th, 2018 minutes,
and are there any corrections or changes that need to be noted before we take
a vote? I'm hearing none. Chair will accept a motion to approve the March
29th, 2018 meeting minutes, and if you could just identify yourself for the
record.

Chairman Hutch, it's Brian Krolicki. | move for approval of the minutes.
Thank you very much, Governor Krolicki. Is there a second?

Bob Cashell, second.



HUTCHISON:

GROUP;

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you very much, Mr. Cashell, and is there any discussion or comments on
the motion? Hearing none, those in favor signify by saying aye.

Aye,

Any opposed, nay. Thank you very much. The motion carries unanimously.

FY19 1% Cycle Rural Marketing Grants Status Update

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

That takes us to Agenda Item D, Fiscal Year ‘19 1st Cycle Rural Marketing Grant
Status Update. Mr. Peterson.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, David Peterson, Interim
Director of the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs. As you are all
aware, we lost our amazing Rural Programs Manager, Kari Frilot, on June 1st.
I'm sure you can all imagine the impact that this has had on the Department, on
TravelNevada, but even more so on the Sales and Industry Partners team. In
spite of the team's loss, | am super proud to say that Teri Laursen, with the help
of Christian Passink, Mary Hummel, and Dee Dykes, stepped up to go through all
216 grant applications with attention to detail that would have made Kari
proud. The staff recommendations were completed last week. They were
provided to the Territory Advisory Committee for their Monday meeting earlier
this week, and | also want to thank the TAC for their flexibility in making the
meeting happen and for an amazing effort in getting through the grants in a
very truncated timeline. | just want to thank everybody for getting through the
grants. I'm happy to say that the electronic copies of the TAC's
recommendations will all be emailed to you as our Commission on Tourism, and
hard copies will be overnighted in advance of next Monday's special conference
call at one o'clock, and that will be to review and approve the 1st cycle fiscal ‘19
grant recommendations. That's my update, Lieutenant Governor, on where
we're at with the grants for cycle fiscal '19.

Thank you very much, and we all know how big of a loss it was for The
Commission on Tourism and TravelNevada as well as the hospitality industry in
general. We lost really a true tourism advocate and a friend when Kari left us on
June 1st. She, of course, was our Rural Programs Manager at the time that she
unexpectedly passed away. Kari has just been absolutely dedicated for the past
ten years and such a staunch supporter of what we do at the Commission and
with the tourism industry and TravelNevada in particularly. | know, Governor
Krolicki, you spent a lot of time with Kari as well, and certainly would be
appropriate, | think, for you to also make some comments after | conclude here,



KROLICKI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

but we're going to miss her tremendously. We know that she loved what we're
doing here. We'll carry on in her spirit and in her tradition.

Some reminiscences about Kari. She started off as TravelNevada Chair in what
was then knogwn as the Pioneer Territory. She emerged quickly as a leader in
the industry and demonstrated the ability and the talent that we all saw on a
regular basis, and she met the needs of that rural community and those
challenges of her constituents there. 8ecause of her leadership and her
compassion and her attention to detail and her, really, genuine desire, as we all
know, Kari had to really make a difference.

She joined TravelNevada as the Rural Grants Manager in June of 2008, and
communities throughout MNevada recognized her contributions and have
acknowledged the difference that she made in the development of tourism
products and services. In fact, the good people of the town of Tonopah, and
Shari Bombard in particular, attributes Tonopah as being identified as a model
for rural tourism development due in part to Kari's expertise and her guidance
there. She understood the challenges, and she understood the strengths of, as |
said, the rural programs. We certainly never would have had the successes that
we've had without her, and | know that Tonopah feels that way. Shari Bombard
mentioned that herself, and those same sentiments have been shared
throughout the state as we all mourn the passing of Kari.

In December of 2015, she moved from the Rural Grants Manager to the Rural
Programs Manager, which included the planned execution for our annual Rural
Roundup, an event that she, of course, dearly loved, and as you all know, Kari
has been described by us, by her family, by her friends as a dedicated, caring,
smart, funny, fair, and all around amazing human being. She was also a
daughter and a wife, a mother, a mother-in-law, an aunt, an Elk, a sister, and a
twin, and | know that you all join with me on the Commission and throughout
Nevada in expressing our deep felt love and appreciation for Kari. Our
condclences to her family. She'll be sorely missed as a true Nevadan and a
great partner in the tourism industry. God Bless her memory, and God bless all
she did for the great state of Nevada. Governor Krolicki, why don't | turn some
time over to you? | know you've had some experiences and many years with
Kari.

Chairman Hutch, thank you so much. | think we're all shocked. David, thank
you for being prompt and exquisite and gentle touch with everyone, so word
quickly got around. | was actually just looking at the minutes yesterday. | never
realized my last conversation with Kari was our exchange about some of the
grants at our last meeting, but as you've just perfectly said, she was part of this

5



HUTCHISON:

CARANO:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

very special fabric of our little tourism family here in Nevada. | think anyone
who spends time with NCOT, knows what we do in the Las Vegas and Reno
areas. But the heart and soul, the most precious moments of the Commission
on Tourism, with all due respect to outside of Nevada, is rural Nevada. The
volunteer networks and the people who just do it out of passion and she was at
the very heart and soul of it. That's why she achieved the role that she did.

But again, she was taken too quickly, you know, just shocking. | hope that this
Commission can perhaps do a resolution or something, Mr. Chairman, at some
point in time when it's appropriate, when we do get in front of the family. |
believe the services may have already happened, but if there's another occasion
where we can invite the family to be with us so they have a chance to see and
feel how much we cared for her. | know there are others on this Commission
who spent time with her, but | will miss her dearly. What an extraordinary
persan. She had the perfect job at the perfect place with the perfect team, and
the perfect venue, and that's pretty sweet. God speed to her, and God bless,
and perhaps, Mr. Chairman, if we can adjourn today's meeting in her memory, |
think that would be very nice, and that could be forever part of our minutes.

You're absolutely right, Governor Krolicki. We will do that, and thank you for
your kind remarks. You've added greatly to what we hope as a Commission we
can express publicly, and | think also to her family. Mr. Peterson, if you can
make an arrangement for her family to be with us and agendize that, we'd
certainly like to do that. | think that's a great suggestion, Governor. Thank you.
Are there any other Members of the Commission who would like to talk on this
point and particularly about Kari under this Agenda item, ! think now would be
the time to do so.

This is Cindy Carano, Vice Chair. | would like to thank the Nevada Commission
on Tourism and Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs for bringing Kari
into our fold. She just tremendously took over really hig shoes from Christian,
and they just really -- she just really ran a wonderful rural program. The last
Rural Roundup | was so fortunate to attend was just absolutely incredible, |
know she was nervous. She went into it. It was her second one, and it just went
off without a hitch. It just was amazing, and she was healthy and vibrant. I'm
just really shocked to hear just shortly thereafter that she had passed, and so
I'm just very grateful that | got to know Kari and especially very grateful for the
time we spent in Tonopah. Thank you.

Thank you, Vice Chair Carano. Any other comments under this Agenda item?



NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is Bon Newman for the record. | just would echo the sentiments,
Lieutenant Governor, Kralicki and Governor Hutchison have expressed. Having
administered for the past years the rural grants program as the Rural
Commissioner, working with Larry, Christian, and then the opportunity to work
with Kari. She just thrived on this, and her attention to detail, again, felt
throughout rural Nevada has been demonstrated time and time again. I'm still
kind of in a little bit of a funk over this surprise. | would just echo the
sentiments, and she will be missed. It was a tragedy that no one expected, but
again, our family will move forward, and hopefully, we'll just do that in
remembrance of her. Thank you.

Thank you, Commissioner Newman. All right. Perhaps, Mr. Peterson, we can
take this transcript and compile it and use it and make it part of what we're
going to present and offer to the family as we honor Kari in the future.

For the record, David Peterson. Absolutely, Lieutenant Governor, and we'll
agendize something on the September meeting's Agenda.

All right. Unless there are any further comments, we will move off of Agenda
Itemn D and move down te Agenda Item E.

Discussion and Approval of New Marketing Committee Members

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

Discussion and Approval of New Marketing Committee Members. Mr. Peterson.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, David Peterson. This Agenda
item is a carryover from the March Commission meeting pursuant to the
addition of two Marketing Committee members. If you will recall, the
Commission previously discussed the addition of Kristin Windbigler, the
Executive Director of the Western Folk Life Center, and Carl Ribaudo, founder
and President of SMG Consulting. This Agenda item does include the letter S in
members with both individuals properly being listed for the Commission's
consideration.  Resumes for both candidates are included in your packets after
the yellow sheet.

Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Members of the Commission, is there any discussion
or further comment? We talked about this last meeting and felt very strongly
about both of these candidates as potentially becoming members of the
Marketing Committee. Would anybody else like to speak on this matter before |
accept a motion? All right, hearing none, then the Chair will accept a motion for
the approval of the new Marketing Committee members of Kristin Windbigler
and Carl Ribaudo.



CASHELL:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

KROLICKI:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

Brand USA Update

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

JOSEPH:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

So moved.
Commissioner Cashell, thank you for that motion. Is there a second?
Commissioner Newman. I'll second that.

Thank you. Commissioner Newman has seconded. Is there any discussion on
the motion?

Would members in the motion -- would the S be a capital 5 for emphasis?

We will take it as a capital 5. All right, any further discussion, comments on the
motion? Hearing none, those in favor signify by saying aye.

Aye,

Any opposed, nay. Motion carries unanimously, and we welcome our new
Marketing Committee members to the team and look forward to working with
bath of them.

That takes us now, Commission Members to Agenda Item F, which is Brand USA
Update. Mr. Peterson.

For the record, David Peterson. I'm very excited to introduce to you today Mr.
Phillip Joseph, who's the Senior Manager for product engagement with Brand
USA. Phillip worked with Yennifer Diaz on our staff along with Teri and our
market managers as well as our marketing and PR teams to come up with the FY
'19 programs that TravelNevada will be partnering with Brand USA on. I'd like
to turn the time over now to Phillip to provide the Commission with an overview
of Brand USA as well as the programs that TravelNevada will be participating in
next fiscal year. The budget details of the fiscal '19 program activities for us, for
the agency, can be found after the yellow tab in your packet. Thank you.

For the record, my name is Phillip Joseph, and I'm on the partnhership team at
Brand USA. Thank you, Dave, for that introduction. | would also like to
acknowledge my colleague, Demetria Clemons, who's with our marketing
partners at Miles Media, who's here today. | appreciate the opportunity to be
here on behalf of Brand USA and tell you a little bit about Brand USA, how we
work with TravelNevada, and our strategic plan for FY19. I'd also like to

8



RALENKOTTER:

JOSEPH:

JOSEPH:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

recognize Rossi Ralenkotter, who's a Board Member of Brand USA as well as
TravelNevada's Commission.

Thank you.

Travel, as you al! know, is a major economic driver. In 2017, traveling tourism
represented more than 10% of global GDP, supporting 313 million jobs around
the world. In the USA, travel is the number one service export with over 76
million international visitors who spend $245 billion annually, and it represents
2.7% of GDP, supporting 7.6 million jobs in the US.

A little about Brand USA, created by the Travel Promotion Act in 2009, Brand
USA has the privilege of being the destination marketing organization for the
United States, and our mission is simple. It's to increase incremental
international visitation, spend and market share to fuel our nation's economy
and enhance the image of the USA around the world.

Supporting our mission are five foundational elements. To promote the entirety
of the USA, all 50 states, five territories, and the District of Columbia to,
through, and beyond the gateway. To “market the welcome,” inspire, inform,
welcome, and thank visitors while communicating visa and entry policy. To
build and maintain trusted relationships with our stakeholders around the
world, including state tourism partners like TravelNevada, and to add and create
value, and this is where we feel we can help our partners like TravelNevada the
most, by creating cooperative marketing programs and platforms that
destinations would be challenged or unable to do on their own. And of course,
to maximize and optimize our resources.

Brand USA is funded by international travelers from visa waiver countries who
pay a $14 fee to visit the USA. Ten of those dollars go into the Travel Promotion
Fund, and Brand USA has the ability to unlock up to $100 million of those dollars
each year. And the good news is that our marketing efforts are working.

Over the past five years, Brand USA's marketing efforts have generated 5.4
million incremental visitors who have collectively spent 17.7 billion incremental
dollars supporting the creation of $51,000 each year, and before | talk a little bit
about our partnership with TravelNevada, I'd like to show you a video that
highlights some of Brand USA's recent accomplishments.

Brand USA is now fully deployed with consumer trade and cooperative
programs in 14 countries that generate more than 80% of inbound travel to the
USA and have some marketing in over 40 countries around the world. First, I'd

9



JOSEPH:

JOSEPH:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

like to thank TravelNevada for being a consistent partner of Brand USA. We
truly appreciate the support. Brand USA promotes Nevada in three traditional
ways featuring Nevada and our consumer trade and cooperative programs, and
I'd like to share a few highlights with you.

TravelNevada recently supported Brand USA's Mega Media Ventures Program,
part of our Visiting Journalist Program in partnership with American Airlines and
Marriott Hotels. Hector Rizzo from the Mexican publication Tour Magazine
spent time in Nevada earlier this month, and we look forward to seeing the
results of his visit. Nevada has also been featured in several of Brand USA's
increasingly popular MegaFams, bringing top-selling travel professionals and
praoduct developers from key countries to the USA to enhance their knowledge
and ability to sell the USA. In fact, in August of this year, Nevada will host Brand
USA's Australia MegaFam finale, which will bring more than 75 travel
professionals from Australia to experience Nevada.

Brand USA recently announced the launch of GoUSA TV, a first of its kind
connected TV network featuring best in class created, curated, and licensed
video content to inspire, invite, and welcome travelers to visit the USA. Cur
goal is for GoUSA to become a top ten travel channel and generate three million
views in the first year. We're thrilled to feature TravelNevada's insider series on
GoUSA TV, and | would like to show you an example of what one of the videos
locks like on our channel.

Brand USA's #AskaLocal Campaign uses a documentary styled approach to share
amazing travel experiences through the voices and faces of people in the USA.
The first person recommendations highlight local attractions, food, nightlife,
music, and scenery throughout the 50 states, five territories, and the District of
Columbia. Brand USA recently produced an #Askalocal Nevada video that
features Las Vegas, and the intent is to add more Nevada series to create one
big welcoming Nevada video, and I'd like to show you the #Askalocal Nevada
video.

And finally, in your packets, you have a copy of the recommended Brand USA,
TravelNevada FY19 Strategic Plan. The plan was put together with the awesome
TravelNevada team and includes Brand USA originals, our foundational
programs like the inspiration guide that inspire international travelers to visit
the USA, country-specific programs targeting TravelNevada's key markets such
as the UK, Mexico, Canada, Australia, and Germany, travel trade initiatives,
including participating in Brand USA's sales missions to India, Japan, South
Korea, and China, and a few other cooperative programs that Brand USA will
support. It includes a combination of consumer media, content creation and

10



HUTCHISON:

KROLICKI:

HUTCHISON:

KROLICKI:

RALENKOTTER:

KROLICKI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

distribution, travel trade, and activation programs, and because Brand USA
contributes and invests significantly into each of these programs, by partnering
with Brand USA, TravelNevada is able to achieve a nearly five-to-one value on
their investment. At this point, I'd like to thank the TravelNevada team for their
hard work and partnership, and I'd be happy to answer any questions you have
about Brand USA or the Strategic Plan for FY19. Thank you.

Mr. Joseph, thank you very much. Members of the Commission, questions for
Mr. Joseph.

Mr. Chairman, it's Brian Krolicki.
Governor Krolicki, please proceed.

Thank you. Phillip, welcome. It's not so much asking questions, but just
recognizing the value that Brand USA has provided for so long. Welcome to you
and your colleague. | hope you get to stay a couple extra days and see all that
we have. We're all on message here, but enjoy Lake Tahoe, Reno, rural and
down to Rossi's territory down there and just enjoy, take some vacation.

Brand USA has been an exquisite partner with us under my time as your Chair,
Mr. Chairman. Rossi Ralenkotter, you're on the phone, you know. Not only do
you serve us exquisitely well, but your efforts on the national and global scene,
your leadership has been instrumental. Phillip, you mentioned this your
comments. We should all cherish the fact that we've had Rossi Ralenkotter, a
Nevadan, a Las Vegan, being a voice for the United States. Rossi, there are 76
million people coming through this program. There's still some for you to
capture and for us to capture up here. So, you could do a little bit better. That's
my joke!

We can [inaudible)]

We, the Commission, LVCVA, RSCVA have wrestled the folks in Congress in the
past. Understandably, they like to divert some of these monies from the visa
waiver countries fund operations. It's always an easy source of funding to divert
elsewhere. But as you said, the return is five to one, tourism being so large.
We've always been supportive of you in your message, and we should continue
to do so as a Commission, as individuals, as our convention and visitors
authorities. | think what you do is terribly important, and folks don't always
guite understand that, especially thase who don't know what tourism does from
an economic development part of what we do. I'd also like to ask a favor.
Please give my best to Devon Dowell. [ think I've traveled with her on multiple

11



JOSEPH:

KROLICKI:

JOSEPH:

KROLICKI:

JOSEPH:

HUTCHISON:

RALENKOTTER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

occasions in India and Asia as part of Brand USA, and she just does her job
exquisitely well. | think she's the Director of Global Strategy now.

Yeah, Devon actually just recently left our team to beona -
Oh, that's too bad.

But she's been an awesome friend and partner to Brand USA. ['ve known her
my entire time that I've been at Brand USA, and she's a great person.

| have personally witnessed the muscle of Brand USA in faraway places.
Through Brand USA, US Commercial Services and the State Department, there's
still an ability for Nevada to have its voice heard under those larger auspices.
Whatever we can do to support and partner with Brand USA is in our hest
interest and cost efficient. You're effective, and you just make us better. Thank
you for being our partner, and Mr. Chairman, thank you for continuing this
relationship that we have. | see on the calendar there are multiple touches that
NCOT has with Brand USA, and | would always urge this Commission, and Mr,
Chairman, you, and those who follow sitting in your chair to continue this strong
commitment to Brand USA. Thank you.

Thank you, Commissioner.

Thank you, Governor Krolicki, and as always, well said and you have articulated
my feelings, as well. Other comments, any other Commission Members in
Carson City who would like to ask questions or provide comment or anyone on
the phone who would like to ask questions or provide comment.

Just a comment. This is Rossi in Las Vegas, and as you know, prior to Brand USA,
the United States was one of the few countries in the world that did not have a
brand marketing organization to promote our country to the world. When this
was being brought forth by the industry, Senator Reed led the charge to look at
how this could be done effectively and allow all of us to be part of it. They did
use the organizational structure design of the LVCVA as they formed Brand USA.
It has been highly successful, We still have the goal of bringing in a hundred
million international visitors a year to the United States. That's still out there. It
is a positive balance of trade. We need to be telling the message of America to
everyone that we can, and these programs allow large and middle-sized and
small communities and destinations to be a part of it, some things that they
couldn’t do before because of the cost of this. So we all need to make sure that
it stays funded. There are some discussions right now about the future funding
for Brand USA. All of us need to be talking to our members in Congress about

12



HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

this as well as members of Congress from other states, because it has been a
great program. I'm glad that they made the presentation today. Good job, and
all of us should support it.

Commissioner Ralenkotter, thank you very much for your comments and the
insights you have being so close to Brand USA and for all your efforts as
Governor Krolicki had mentioned previously. Any other comments or questions
of Members of the Commission for Mr. Joseph. Mr. Joseph, thank you very
much for your presentation, and again, | think Commissioner Ralenkotter and
Governor Krolicki really expressed all of our sentiments and our dedication to
this partnership and our appreciation to the partnership. | saw not only the
muscle and the prestige, but the effectiveness of Brand USA in my travels as
well, particularly, in India when we were there, and partnered in Brand USA
events. Thank you for being here today and know of our commitment to the
partnership, and let us know of anything that you think we could do to
strengthen that commitment. Thank you, Mr. Joseph.

Iintroduction of the New Creative Team

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

NEBESKY:

MCDONALD:

Let's move on, then, to Agenda Item G, Intreduction of New Creative Team. Mr.
Peterson.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, David Peterson. I'm super
excited to announce at yesterday's Board of Examiners Meeting that the
contracts for BVK, Fahlgren Mortine, and Noble Studios were ail approved. With
that, I'm going to turn the time over to Brenda MNebesky to introduce our two
newest partners as well as Fahilgren Mortine, who, again, will retain a couple of
the contracts for media and public relations. Thank you.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky, Interim Deputy Director. As Dave mentioned,
we underwent an extensive RFP solicitation and evaluation process for
marketing services. Those contracts, were approved by the Board of Examiners
yesterday, I'm very happy to be able to introduce those teams to you today.
we'll be working with Fahlgren Mortine for PR and media-buying, BVK for
creative services, and Noble Studios for digital and web development. | think
you'll agree they'll bring TravelNevada the vision and creative strategy necessary
to take the “"Don’t Fence Me In"” campaign on to even greater success. So,
with that, I'll introduce our long-time colleague from Fahlgren Mortine, Marty
McDonald.

Thank you, Brenda. Good afternoon. I'm Marty McDonald for the record, EVP
with Fahlgren Mortine. As Brenda and David both had said, we just wanted to

13



PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

do a reintroduction. We feel like old friends. We've heen on board this ship for
some time, but we're very excited to be turning a page and opening a new
chapter of where this campaign and where this program will go next. What we
have prepared is just a quick look back. We always say that we realize that
every time we stepped up to this podium, it's really about today and tomorrow
and where we're going, not about the past and where we've been. We do like
to use the phrase, at least check your mirrors, you know, a quick look back over
the shoulder just to remind ourselves where we've been and how we got here.
So, just a few slides that'll take you quickly, kind of catch you up for those who
may just be tuning in, and out of respect for new Commissioners and new
people who are just joining, again, we just want to do a quick reminder here.

This doesn't look great on a slide. It's really just here for the purposes of being
in your packet. It's a quick height and weight overview of our agency. It gives
you a sense of how many associates we have, what kind of work we do. You'll
see a lot in here about awards, and we talk about awards not because we like to
pat ourselves on the back, but because awards are about measured success and
often are judged by a panel of peers.

Lieutenant Governor, this is Dave. |think somebody needs to mute. If you're on
the phone, we're getting a lot of feedback here in Carson City. So, if everybody
could just mute their phones, please. Thank you.

Okay, we'll make sure everybody does that in the room. Thank you.

That's okay. 1 understand. All right, we'll see how that does. All right, so, just
flipping quickly through, at some of the other brands we serve. We play very
deeply in the tourism space. You'll see some of those brands that we work with
in just a moment, but a quick look at some brands, everything from consumer
packaged goods, paint, garden products, to beer and doughnuts. It kind of runs
the gamut. Some of the other destinations that we represent are up here on
the slide for a quick at a glance. On the right, the ones that are shaded a little
darker blue represent our subsidiary brand, Turner, and the work that they do
on the PR side of the world. We have locations in multiple places, and then
looking at our team, we've spent a lot of time here in Nevada, and | think we
won't talk too much about that, but we have gotten to know a lot of the
partners throughout the state. We understand the power, as you mentioned
earlier, Governor, about the rurals and the destination and the product that we
represent. You really can't do that over the phone. We've spent a lot of time in
the field, and | would like to think the state's a little richer as a result of our
work, and our hearts are certainly bigger.

14



MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We've also brought in a lot of national recognition for this program. We feel like
we've set a really strong table, but there's plenty of room, and we're excited to
welcome new partners in this journey. I'm going to jump back real quickly. The
next slide is really a quick look video that'll catch you up to speed on this
program and what has happened really since 2014 since we joined the
conversation.

Excuse me. That was a quick overview and a flashback for you, and the last slide
there, we talked about the importance of driving results, and so we don't just
generalize. These are actually some of the results that we've driven as a
testament and as verified by our third party research partner. Looking back to
2014 we began really leaning into a millennial marketing campaign knowing that
we were hitting some saturation in key markets and we needed to drive and
widen our appeal to a younger audience. This is how we've migrated that
audience and our visitor today. They're younger, 47, the average age, versus
about 55, have a higher household median income, and they're more educated.
There's so much we could dive into which results in metrics, but that gives you a
nice snapshot, and most importantly, we've driven visitor volume at a rate of
about 2% per year.

That said, we're turning a page today, shifting into where we're going from here.
We pivot. Right now today, we'll shift into 2 mode of serving as your PR and
external communications partner and also media planning and buying. We do
have four of us in the room today represented there in the center. We have an
extended PR team which is augmented with boots on the ground here with The
Abbi Agency based in Reno to help make sure, again, that we stay connected
and having real live conversations and story-mining about the great stories
there are to tell throughout our state. And on the right-hand side, we have the
full media team represented just to give you some names and faces of who's
going to he working on your behalf.

Next are a couple slides each on our approach for PR. We take a strategic
approach to PR. We don't like to be called publicists just pitching stories for the
sake of generating ink. Some say, | don't care what you say about me as long as
you print a lot, you know, as long as we're out there, but we feel differently.
We're about adding dimension to brands and being very thoughtful and
strategic about how we are building brands as a destination. So, three prongs to
our approach, national media. Those are the kinds of things, the efforts that
shape our brand and our reputation nationally. We focus heavily on target
markets and the visitors that are likely to really come and convert into our state
and the niche -- the enthusiasts who care passionately and deeply about the
kinds of things we have to offer. We've got to do all of those things in harmony.

15



REEP:

MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

These are just a quick look at some of the key storylines that we have been
promoting in conjunction with the great team here at TravelNevada. We work
together in the trenches every day at promoting some of these storylines, and
then we want to just give you a quick preview on the paid media planning and
buying side of some tenets of our approach. Chrystie Reep, my colleague.

Hello, for the record, I'm Chrystie Reep, and I'm an EVP at Fahlgren Mortine as
well and oversee our paid media team, and | just want to echo Marty and our
excitement to continue working together and continue to grow and evolve the
programs as the media landscape, as we all know, continues to change daily, if
not hourly, and, you know, really keeping ahead of that.

For us, there's really three key tenets to our paid media approach, creating
connections between brands and consumers, not just simply reaching them, but
creating that relationship and creating connections so that they begin to build
that relationship. We do that by using all of the data that's available to us today
to help guide every decision that we make, and there's more data than ever that
helps us ensure that we're leveraging that data to ensure investments work
hard to deliver meaningful ROl. We're always looking at not just media metrics,
but what are we truly delivering and getting more visitors to the state.

Our approach is kind of five key tenets of surrounding that audience and
becoming part of their daily lives. We can't ask them to do something different,
so we really need to engage with them in environments where they're at so that
we can create relationships. So, they're inviting us into their lives. People have
so many options today when it comes to media and the media that they're
using, that it's important for us to find them and use all of the data. | talk a lot
about data, but using all of the data that's available to create relevant targeting
so that the messaging is relevant to those people at that moment. But
everything we do is performance-based, and we're constantly optimizing,
constantly making programs stronger. It's not developing a plan and buying the
media and then letting it run. It's a constant everyday evolution and
optimization of all of those programs. Then finally, again, always driving to
those end results, and part of that is the IME studies and keeping a close eye an
those at all times, but then also ultimately delivering that RO1. Turn it back to
you.

All right, for the record, I'm Marty McDonald just bringing us home, one last
slide on integration. As we go forward, we mentioned this is about tomorrow
and where we plan to go, and we have a lot of experience working with partners
in the industry, one of which is BVK. We also work and have crossed paths

16



SIMMONS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

many times with Noble, and we're just so excited to continue the great path
that we're on. It has been an honor to serve as your partner in the last nearly
four years, and it will be an honor to continue on. With that, | believe you want
me to just keep rolling with introductions. All right, I'll introduce our great
partners and our new friends at BVK.

Thank you, Marty, and good afternoon, Commissioners. For the record, my
name is Victoria Simmons. I'm a VP Group Director at BVK. I'm one of the
senior leaders of our travel and tourism practice, and I'm here with a couple of
my colleagues, Kevin Kriehn who is an Executive Creative Director who you'll
hear from momentarily, and then Bridget Wirth, who is an Accounts Supervisor
who's going to be actively managing the relationship with TravelNevada. And
we're incredibly excited to be here with you today. You know, we had met with
the Selection Committee back in April, and | feel like | have a permanent smile
on my face, because we've had to be very patient. So, really excited about the
opportunity to be here with you today and to get started. So, for those of you
who aren't as familiar with BVK, | thought I'd start with a quick background on
just who we are and our philosophy.

So, we are a top 25 independently owned full service advertising and marketing
agency. We have about 230 employees who generate about $300 million in
annual billings. We're actually headquartered out of Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
We have a couple of satellite offices throughout the US, and we have a
multicultural division located in Miami. We're actually fairly large to still be
independently owned. The V in BVK, Michae! Voss, is still very much part of our
company today. We have a depth of resources certainly that we can bring to
bear in terms of creating economic impact for the state of Nevada. We like to
say that we create category-changing, innovative ideas for brands that really
create life-changing experiences for consumers.

We're organized very much like a management consultancy in that we have
deep category experience across a couple of key verticals, so travel and tourism,
of course, but also health care and education. These are categories that actually
do have a lot in common. They're what we call high aspiration, high
involvement categories, right? You spend a lot of time thinking about where
you want to travel and planning your trip and where you might send your kids to
college and certainly what hospitals and doctors you would trust with your
health care, but also they're very retail in nature, and tourism, it's about heads
in beds and education. It's about enrollment, and on the hospital side, about
filling beds as well. There's a lot that we can learn by working across these
three particular verticals, because at the end of the day, right, you've hired us to

17



KRIEHN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

be your creative agency, but all that work is really aimed at driving revenue and
economic impact for the state of Nevada.

Our love affair with the state actually started with Reno-Tahoe. We have been
privileged to work with the RSCVA for about the past two-and-a-half years, and,
you know, we're really blown away by the bold and ambitious and, you know,
the spirit of that community and privileged to be able to be a part of the
renaissance and the revitalization that's happening there, and a lot of that is
really born out of sort of that maverick spirit that's so prevalent here in the
state. You Nevadans don't do things the way everybody else does, and that's
really infectious. We're very much looking forward to branching out, getting to
know your industry stakeholders located throughout the rest of the state.

Next, | have just a short video to share with you that'll give you a little hit of our
philoscphy as it relates to travel and show you some of the work we do for our
tourism clients. This is just a quick snapshot, too, of who we're currently
working with. Obviously, very happy to add TravelNevada to that list, but we
are working with several other states, and we're working with Maine, Wyoming,
West Virginia. | think that's important to you guys, because states do have very
specific needs other than individual CVBs, but of course we're working in Reno-
Tahoe, in Columbus, and with one of the biggest CVBs in the country with Visit
Orlando. Just a snapshot of our depth of expertise and the travel space, and
here is that video.

For the record, Kevin Kriehn, Executive Creative Director, BVK. Hopefully, that
gave you kind of a quick snapshot of some of the work we've done in the space,
but also kind of our approach and philosophy on the work itself. One of the
mantras we have in our office and use quite often is “don’t swim in the same
slew” right? By that, we mean, you know, what can we do to separate and
differentiate the clients that we work with, and in the travel space, we often see
a lot of that sea of sameness going on with messaging look and feel, and it all
begins for us with the premise that iconic brands create brand craving. And by
brand craving, | mean really getting to the point where consumers are so
passionate about a brand or a product they offer that they actively seek it out.
They constantly crave it. It becomes a companent of who they are and how
they live their lives. When we do that, we create not only an affinity for the
brand, but people who are active advocates for it, and if you think about how
that can work in particular for a travel or tourism destination and really reframe
it in becoming a lifestyle brand, because it's so episodic in nature, when people
consider travel or take a trip, we really want to figure out ways to become part
of their lives outside of that one or two-week timeframe.

18



HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

There's been a lot of research done in neuroscience that's really based on the
idea of narrowing that psychological separation between us and the consumers,
and much of that is tied to really making more of an emotional connection. We
all like to think we make this rational thought process when we're choosing a
destination or making a decision on a product, but the reality is it's often really
tied to an emotional decision, and then we sort of backfill that choice or
decision with the rational thought process.

A lot of the work that we do begins with our strategic planning team that's
focused on what we call values-based positioning. There are over 500 different
values that have been defined by behaviorists. They're shared human values
that we can all relate to in some fashion, and values really are so powerful
because they define who we are, how we choose to live our lives, kind of that
reflection of either who we are or who we want to be. In this case, we go
through a fairly rigorous thought process with our research team and our
insights group to not only identify a value that we think is representative of the
brand, but it's also reftected in the audience and those that we're trying to
attract. It's not just that they can relate to a value, but it's a value that they
desperately seek more of, and it becomes an antidote for what's missing in their
lives. When we bring the two of those together, it's that sweet spot in the
middle where we can start to tap into the emotional side.

As we have gone through the process, and | certainly share Victoria's sentiment,
it's been really exciting to go through some of the initial thinking and share that
when we were here for the pitches. It's been a little stressful, this waiting to
come back here and kick things off, because we get excited when we're doing
this and for the opportunity, and one of the great things about being the
independent agency that Victoria described is we can be pretty selective about
who we work with, and we really want to find clients that we become true
partners with, where we know we can have an impact. One of the reasons we
do that -- and this is an example, right? It's four years. We become friends with
those people over the years, and we really want the outcomes not just for
ourselves, but to show the success that we can have in driving more visitation.
One of the big indicators for us is that our average tenure with clients is three
times the industry average, and in fact, our longest client, which is Mark Travel,
has been with us for nearly 35 years now. 1 think, our goal, is not only to, you
know, deliver great work that has successful outcomes, but really become those
partners and friends over time, and we can share in the success together. So,
with that, we will take any questions.

All right, thank you very much. Were we going to have a presentation at all
from Noble Studios?

19



PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

THOMAS:

THOMAS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

For the record, Lieutenant Governor, this is Dave Peterson. Yes, Mr. Michael
Thomas is coming up.

Why don't we have that presentation, and then we'll ask questions of all three
since we're grouped here together. Please proceed.

Good afternoon. For the record, I'm Michael Thomas. | am a partner and serve
the role of Chief Marketing Officer at Noble Studios, and it is a pleasure to be in
front of you today. Next month, the agency -- we're a digital marketing agency -
- was founded just down the street at one of the Pony Express stops right across
from the state capital and the legislative building. We celebrate 15 years next
month being a business, and we could think of no better way to celebrate our
15th anniversary to be able to work on the TravelNevada account. For those of
you that don't know Ncble Studios, | want to introduce you to our work and to
the way that we will approach our assignment.

As a digital marketing agency, we have a really important mantra around our
office and what we work on behalf of our clients. It's pretty simple. It's about
being better every day, and we think that's so important because while there
are great ideas and big thoughts, incremental improvement is what wins in
today's marketing world. There are some folks from our team that are here.
We wanted to show some of the thinking and some of the fire in our belly about
taking on this account, so we put together a little video that was part of our
introduction to Noble. We'd like to play it for you, and you can get a sense of
what we think that means day in and day out.

We're very excited about the opportunity. There's a lot of fire in our belly, It
wouldn't be enough just to be from the state. We think there's some other
reasons why we're uniquely qualified to take advantage of this team, and we
also want to echo the spirit of partnership that we have. We have an incredible
roster, very capable, creative media, public relations, and digital agencies that
are in front of you. These are just some of the reasons why we think that Noble
is a great fit for this. We use data. We really think about technology first. You
know, our mobile devices really change the way that travelers choose
destinations and interact with them. So, we're going to really take all the
experience that we've leveraged in other destinations.

A little bit about us as an agency, we have some distinctions that we think are
really important to bringing an important foundation to this team. We're in the
top three percent of all Google agencies, and that's called a Google premiere
partnership, and we're also Google Analytics' premiere partners that allows to

20



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

use data to inform not only the work that we do on the website, but it helps
inform and improve all of the creative aspects, and we know data is at the core
of the decisions that we need to make. A couple of other partnerships that we
want to mention, we're going to talk about the work that we'll do around CRM
and personalization, but we have the ability to customize the website
experience based on attributes we know about the visitors. So, we're going to
bring that level of thinking to try to increase conversion, and then we're also
going to be utilizing demand. The demand that's taking place on Google, about
nine out of every ten purchases in the world today begin with a search engine.
So, while it's important for us to have our story that we want to tell the world, if
there's no demand for that story, then no one finds the content. So, we have to
make sure that we're aligning to what the search demand is telling us that
people are looking for and align a very diverse product that we have in our state
to make sure that that pays off.

We also have the benefit of working with a number of other leading
destinations, including the country of Tahiti. We just launched a major overhaul
of all of their digital properties. We have 18 different country websites for the
islands of Tahiti. We've got the opportunity to work in destinations as diverse
as Santa Monica, Newport, and even Fargo, North Dakota, and then we also
have a broad-based approach. We focus on higher education, business-to-
business technology companies, and we have the ability to be diverse in our
point of view, and we try to apply thinking that isn't limited to just being travel
experts, because consumers are exposed to a lot of things. So, we don't want to
be cookie cutter, and we don't want to approach things in the same way.

To get a little specific about how we plan to work on the account, these are the
things that we believe are incredibly important to bring this team together. The
brand of Nevada is really strong, but we also know there's some limitations to
what people know of the state. We've got to be able to make it look like a
cohesive experience. As we push the rule and diverse product that we have
here, how do we take advantage of what we're known for to bring that cohesive
experience together. We also want to make sure that we hit travelers at the
stage where they're still considering multiple destinations and make it really
easy for them to visualize their experience, and they're going to do that through
a very relevant, useful website. We need to anticipate the demands of a user.
It's got to be very simple for them to do. Then we also know the native app that
was launched last year, very capable. We need to really drive a more cohesive
experience to drive a greater share spend in the destination. We were talking
about it today. We can get someone to extend their stay by six hours or eight
hours and hit a cultural museum, go out to a rural area, it just creates a greater

21



Nevada Commission an Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

capture of that economic impact that tourism makes. So, we understand this
indelibly in the way that we approach our work.

Outside of being better every day, we like to call our approach as an agency
data-informed digital. Everybody can be data-driven. We think the perfect
intersection is a process that we like to follow that will fit very nicely with the
wiy the other agencies are going to come to the table. We have to understand
the goals and objectives of our audience. We then go into the fun part of
marketing, which is about the making and the building and then pushing it out,
and then it's using data to make sure that the process is informed and we rinse
and repeat. So, we're going to be directly involved with the entire team to
make sure that all of these efforts come together and we can provide a cohesive
report as three very capable agencies along with your staff to make sure that
we're making really good decisions.

It's really a left brain, right brain approach. We call it creative digital
performance, and what that means is yes, you have to have numbers. You have
to have how many impressions, but if you don't capture someone's heart -- |
think you said it very well. If we don't get into connecting to someone's values,
then they're going to ignore the media no matter how many times we get it in
front of them. So, we've got to bring this together to be relevant at the
moment that someone is looking within the destination,

A little bit about the team. We don't have time to introduce everybody here
today, but just a quick show of hands, the Noble team that came down from our
offices. We are headquartered in Reno. We have satellite offices in Las Vegas
and San Francisco, but the team that you see are set up in what we call
dedicated cohesive teams. The team that's in this room today are going to be
the team that are focused on this account day-to-day. That'll be experienced
team members. | will mention our CEO and founder is on vacation taking
advantage of the opportunity to be out. Couldn't be here today, but this will be
the executive and leadership team that many of them are here today, and then
the day-to-day team that will be the folks that are actually implementing and
being a part of the working mechanism of what we are going to bring to
TravelNevada. So, we're very excited about that opportunity.

How we work together | think is also important, because anybody can get up
here and say we're good partners, but let us take you through the process that
we've learned in working with other agencies. | think the TravelNevada staff has
set a really strong framework. Anybody can have a good idea, but it starts with
understanding the problem we're trying to solve, collaborating on those
solutions, leveraging all of our collective experience, and then being able to

22



HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

actually get to resolution. So, | think we're going to have some -- | would call
them creative discussions. Just because we're digital and just because we focus
on website doesn't mean that we can't have an idea and vice versa. So, we
know that the best ideas come from that team approach.

These are the specific services that we'll focus in on, web, search engine
optimization, user experience design, which is about improving the experience
that visitors will have across all the different channels. We're going to be, again,
looking at the native application that's in the market. | think what gets us very
excited, obviously, you know, your interim director comes from a research and
data-driven background, and we are very delighted at the amount of data that
this organization is sitting on that we can use to make our marketing better. But
now we want to unleash that marketing through really effective utilizations to
make personal experiences more relevant content so that we can go after the
different segments. We love that you're skewing towards a millennial, but we
also know there are very viable audiences that need a different call to action.
The great thing about technology is it's not one size fits all. We can be very
custom in the message we deliver to those potential audiences. So, with that, |
wanted to wrap it up on time, but just say, again, we're very excited about this
opportunity. We really look forward to working with this great team that's
assembled, and | know | speak for all of us that have gone through the process.
It was a very well-run RFP. It was a little excruciating to wait. We finally got to
announce it to the world yesterday, and again, we're very, very delighted to be
part of this very talented team. Thank you very much.

Mr. Peterson, do we have any other presentations or does that conclude the
presentations before | open it up for questions?

For the record, David Peterson. No, those are the presentations underneath
this Agenda item.

Great. Well, thank you all. It was a lot of fun and exciting emotions for me as |
watched those videos and listened to your presentation. We're very excited to
be working with all three of you. Here's just an overall question for anybody to
answer. Give us an idea in terms of how all three agencies will complement and
work together. Take me through a media product that will be produced for
TravelNevada, and how do all three of these agencies fitin?

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. One example, Governor, would be we intend

to integrate fully the PR sales and marketing efforts through our domestic
market. So, for instance, we'll have creative activations at sales events in

23



HUTCHISON:

SIMMONS:

HUTCHISON:

SIMMONS:

HUTCHISON:

DELONE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

combination with a PR event, and so we'll have all three teams waorking with us
to produce an integrated product like that.

Great. Thank you very much. | can't remember which one of you at BVK said
this, but you felt like, what you bring to the table really would have an impact
on us here in Nevada. Why is it that you feel like you can have a particular
impact in Nevada having looked at the RFP process, understood who we are,
and what you can bring to the table? And in particular, you had mentioned that
there are very specific needs that each of the states have, and you've got
different clients in different states. What do you understand about Nevada and
the impact that you can have for TravelNevada?

Sure. Hi, this is Victoria Simmons again for the record. | think what we can
bring to you specifically is, obviously, our expertise in the travel category, but
more specifically because we are working with other state organizations. So, we
understand things beyond just sort of living in our marketing box, right? We
understand your funding model. We understand how you interact with all your
industry stakeholders and how incredibly important it is to make sure that they
feel very much that they're a part of this brand and a part of this campaign. We
actually do think our work is stronger when we have collaborative relationships
with each and every one of those industry partners. We do look forward to
getting out in the state and meeting those people and making the work stronger
as a result sort of our collaborative knowledge. Does that answer your
guestion, Governor?

Great. Well, thank you.
Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Simmons. Thank you for following up for me, and I'm going to
open it up now to any other questions or comments, insights from members of
the Commission. Let's startin Carson City.

Phil DeLone for the record. Victoria, Kevin, you've been a delight to work with,
and I'm so happy, and | know our autherity is so happy to see you come aboard
on this account, and | would just like to commend you for the great work you
did for Reno-Tahoe. You have been involved with our authority and our creative
staff, truly meshed, and we really appreciate the work you've done, and you're
going to do a great job for TravelNevada. Mr. Thomas, nice to see you. | see
you have some gray hair finally, and Noble Studios, you've also done an
excellent job for the Reno-Tahoe region, and it's great to see you obtain this
account for TravelNevada. Great to see great things from both of you.

24



NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

ARGER:

NEBESKY:

ARGER:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Governor, this is Commissioner Newman for the record. The creativity, the
power is oozing out of this room right now. If you look around and see
everybody that's present, | think that the combination of the perfect internal
team that we've assembled and where this group can go with the rest of you.
Marty, the work that Fahlgren Mortine has done over the past has been
wonderful, but to be able to divide and conquer this challenge that we all are
now going to undertake with this group it's very, very powerful. | love this kind
of stuff, and I'm so excited for the opportunity to work with everybody going
forward. Congratulations, but good luck, and hopefully, the sandbox is big
enough for everybody. 1I'm going to plug Elko, and Labor Day, we have the
county fair and horse races. This is much like the horse race. We've got
everybody at the starting gate. They've been waiting, and now the gates are
open, and if you can control these horses, God bless you. It's going to be a great
challenge, but wow, it's an amazing group that's assembled here, and this is
really exciting as we go forward.

Thank you, Commissioner Newman. Any other comments, questions, follow-
ups on this Agenda Item G?

Julia Arger for the record. | echo the sense of creativity in the room, and I'm
curious to know how you're going to focus or help focus on arts and culture in
our state as part of the tourism package.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. Later in the Agenda, I'm going to be discussing
our arts and culture guide, which is one of our premiere projects focused on the
cultural traveler. We're also within next year's budget allocating marketing
dollars specifically to cultural buys both for museums, arts and culture. So,
we're really focusing on that, and we don't have specifics of the plan for you yet,
but we will.

Great. Thank you, Brenda.

Lieutenant Governor, for the record, Dave Peterson. If | can just add one thing
to that. | discussed this very topic this morning with the three teams when we
met and did our introductions. | told them it's about integrating this entire
department together. We have the Nevada Indian Commission, the Nevada
Arts Council, and we have the Division of Museums and History. It's not just
TravelNevada or the Tourism Development Fund. So, not only do | see us
integrating the aris, culture, and heritage as we have identified and outlined in
the strategic plan for this current biennium, but also the Department specifically
as well. We have an all-day meeting tomorrow where we're going to be

25



HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

Agency Reports

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

discussing these very issues, but we did talk about this, this morning, and they
all know the direction that | want to take our agency, but the Department as
well. So, we're onit.

Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Other comments, questions. All right, well, again,
thank you all very much for being here. We're excited to be working with you.
You've got a great staff. We've got tremendous confidence in the members of
TravelNevada, the staff, and the professionals there who are just the gold
standard as far as we're concerned. We know that you'll have a great partner
with our staff, and we look forward to a lot of creative, energetic ideas and
praducts coming from all three of your shops. So, thank you again, and
congratulations. We look forward to working with you.

Excuse me, Governor. This is Herb Santos for the record. | apologize. | was
stuck in court, just got out, and so I'm here now to probably confuse everything.

Well, Commissioner Santos, it's good to have you here. We know we can never
have enough lawyers on this Commission protecting our constitutional rights
and looking out for our property interests. It is always good to have a fellow
member of the bar joining us. I'm waiting for some sort of comment on that,
but we'll move beyond that, and again, thank you all for being here under
Agenda Item G and our new creative team. Welcome to the team, and we're
excited to have you here.

All right, let's move on, then, to Agenda Item H, which are our Agency Reports.
Mr. Peterson, do you want to introduce what we're going to do here. | know I'm
going to start with my comments as the Chair Report, but I'll turn the time
initially over to you to introduce this Agenda item.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, David Peterson. Yeah, |
thought we should do the Chair Report first, and then V'll walk through each of
the sub items underneath H2 if you're comfortable with that.

You know, I'm happy to start off. Why don't we begin with the Chair Report.
we'll proceed as we've agendized it, and | want to just start off with a couple of
different subjects that I'll address. The first is just to tell you a little bit about
what we've been doing with a video shoot earlier this month. | was privileged
to spend some time with our wonderful gold standard professionals at
TravelNevada and had an oppertunity to do a video shoot throughout Reno and
Tahoe and Virginia City and Fallon to meet with our northern Nevada tourism

26



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

partners. TravelNevada's marketing team along with Orange Tree Productions,
wanted to capture footage of businesses and business owners and community
representatives who really demonstrated the spectrum of what we have in the
state of Nevada within our tourism destinations and the impact that tourism has
on our economy throughout the region. Some of the people and places that |
went, just to give you an idea, Commissioner Arger, we did a walking tour of
Reno in midtown and experienced all those wonderful murals led by Art Spot
creator Eric Brooks, a wonderful experience for me to see some of those
hundreds of murals downtown and in midtown that ! don't think a lot of people
know yet about that we really want to promote. It's just such a treasure for us
there in midtown.

Woe then had lunch at the historic depot, the Reno Brewery and Distillery and
Restaurant with owner Chris Shanks, and that was a wonderful experience to
see that completely renovated railroad depot and the vibrancy that has
occurred in that part of the town and that part of the region. Then we went to
Zephyr Cove up in Tahoe on a scenic cruise on the MS Dixie. George Sojka who's
a sales manager there, hosted us, and, | don't have to tell you about Tahoe. It's
the most beautiful place on planet Earth, and we experienced that and captured
that experience, | thought, really well,

We did a ride on the restored McKeen train cars in Carson City at the Nevada
State Railroad Museum with Peter Barton, who's the Administrator there with
the Division of Museum and History, and Dan Thielen, who's the Museum
Director there with the Nevada State Railroad Museum, great experience to just
embrace and understand and feature our railroad history and culture of
Nevada.

Then we spent a night at the Yellow Jack Mine. | spent mine, at the direction of
our gold standard staff, in the haunted cabin at the Gold Hill Hotel and heard
the rattling of picks and shovels as | was haunted all night long in that hotel and
enjoyed the advice and the counsel of Denny Dotson, who many of you know as
the Virginia City Tourism Director there. We had a lot of fun in Virginia City.
Then we had lunch and toured in Fallon the Frey Ranch Estate distillery, one of
the few state distilleries in the country with Colby Frey and had a great
experience and a great time there. And then finally, we ended up visiting
Stillwater National Wildlife Refuge in Grimes Point petroglyph trail with Jane
Moon, Director of the Fallon Convention and Visitors Bureau, and it was just a
wonderful experience. TravelNevada is going to use those interviews and the
location footage as part of our “Tourism Means More” campaign, which as you
know, is a very important public affairs effort that we're going to have with the
legislature in the coming session. It will also be used for Nevada communities

27



Nevada Commission on Tourism [ June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

about how tourism enhances the guality of life and the economic impact it has
in a variety of unexpected ways. So, that was a lot of fun, and thanks again to
TravelNevada, the staff, and everybody who put up with me for two days and
made it a wonderful and enjoyable experience.

The next thing | want to talk about is our late arrival and our constitutional
property interest protector, Herb Santos, who was recognized as the 2018
Nevada Justice Associate Trial Lawyer of the Year, and from one lawyer to
another, congratulations, Herb. That's a very, very prestigious award that
honors one of our fellow Commissioners, and he'll receive that at the annual
summer gala coming up in Las Vegas on june 21st as well as June 22nd in Reno.
And you can arrange tickets through Kathy Cowlen if you are interested in
attending that, and Herb, congratulations and my very best and the very best,
I'm sure, expressing the sentiments of my fellow Commissioners in
congratulating you on a well-deserved professional recognition. That's an
applause line if I've ever heard one,

And lastly, the Commission has to announce sadly that we will be moving
forward without its single biggest champion of the arts and culture of Nevada,
Julia Arger. You already heard her championing arts and culture in our meeting
today. Commissioner Arger, we are going to be less of a Commission without
you, and we will try our best to make up the large shoes that you have to fill in
your role as a champion of all champions of the arts and cultural sector of the
great state of Nevada. You'll be stepping down from your role as a member and
of course the Chair of the Nevada Arts Council Board, and as a result, be
stepping down as a member of our Commission, and we all know Julia and love
her and appreciate her, Just want to give her a little recognition and remind us
all just how fortunate we have been to have her as a member of our
Commission. She first joined the Arts Council Board back in 2008, and we've
had her experience and influence for the last ten years. She's chaired the Arts
Council since 2013 with the creation of the Department on Tourism and Cultural
Affairs. She became a member of Nevada Commission on Tourism in 2013, and
as | mentioned, constantly champicning and educating and advocating on behalf
of the arts and cultural community and the assets we have in the state while
informing the Commission and the Department about the importance of
recognizing cultural tourism as a significant part of the Nevada tourism product.

Julia successfully helped the NAC regain some of the BOD budget that was lost
during the recession. Like other parts of state government, there was some
challenges with funding, but because of Julia's leadership, we were able to
regain much of that budget lost during the recession. Julia hosted Jane Chu who
is the chairman of the National Endowment for the Arts in Nevada through the

28



PETERSON:

ARGER:

HUTCHISON:

KROLICK]:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

western state's arts federation, the Reno Arts Consortium, and the National
Association of State Art Agencies. She's been a representative at each one of
those in addition to what she did in terms of hosting Chairman Chu for the
celebration of the NAC's 50th anniversary.

Julia, we know that you're going to have a great time in kicking back and
relaxing, writing a little poetry while you're overlooking your family-owned
Odyssey Vineyards in Napa Valley with your husband, Costa. We all wish we
had such an opportunity, and we are happy that you've got that opportunity
coming up. We'll miss seeing you and your amazing hat collecticn, which we are
so happy that you are displaying today, and we understand that the hat
collection of yours was inspired by your grandmother, and you've been carrying
on that tradition for many years, and we've enjoyed that. You add a lot of
character and a lot of class to our Commissicn. We want to thank you for all
that you've done for arts in Nevada to make them a priority and to promote
them in tourism for our great state, and on behalf of the Commission, we all
want to thank you and present you with your very own cover of the Nevada
Magazine. And again, Julia, thank you for your years and years of dedicated
service to this Commission.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. This is Dave Peterson for the record. Brenda's
going to present the cover of Nevada Magazine to Julia right now. | just echo
those comments. Julia's been absolutely wonderful to work with, and | can't
thank her enough for providing me with some insight and guidance and
direction to help us with our strategic plan, again, to integrate the Department
better than we were integrating it before. So, thank you for everything, Julia.

Thank you, Governor. Thank you, David. I'm truly humbled, and | do like my
hats, and this will be a reminder. Thank you. Thanks to everyone, Board,
everyone.

Julia, thank you. | know my predecessor, Governor Krolicki, has had a lot of
years with Julia, and we're going to exercise a prerogative of the Chair and ask
Governor Krolicki to express some of his thoughts as well.

| love it, love the hats. We'll miss you terribly. I've known your family before
you ever arrived on this Commission, so it was a great pleasure to welcome Julia
to this Commission. We reintegrated the department and you joined us on the
Commission, we benefited from your advocacy, passion and decency has been
just great. You and your husband deserve a wonderful life after these kind of
duties. The wine you make is extraordinary, and, you know, you can always
send us a case or two. You know, we appreciate that, keeps overhead down in

29



HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

this Laxalt building. But again, thank you for all that you've done, and Hutch,
you said it exquisitely well. The elegance and class you've brought to this
Commission will be missed. God speed.

Thank you, Governor Krolicki, and again, Commissioner Arger, thank you. God
bless you, and | wish nothing but the best in all your pursuits in retirement and
enjoyment with you and your family. All right, well, Mr. Peterson, why don't we
move on, then, to the remainder of our Agenda under Agenda Item H, and if you
can walk us through that and tell us where you're headed.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, David Peterson. Item H2.1 is
the Quarterly Staff Update for January through March 2018. In your packet,
that document is located after the pink sheet labeled agency reports, and again,
that's for the third quarter fiscal '18. I'm happy to answer any questions. We
also have our program directors here as well if you have any specific questions
at this time.

Commissioners, any questions? Hearing none, Mr. Peterson, please continue.

Thank you. For the record, David Peterson. H2.2 is the Fiscal '18 Budget
Update. In your packet, that is located directly after the Quarterly Report, and
it's through June 10th, and it's for our primary program categories for fiscal '18.
I'lt just briefly go through those. Category 02, again, is our out-of-state travel
category. We have spent just over $35,000 so far. The remaining funds, based
on activities through lune as well as flights for travel in July and August will be
spent by the time we close our fiscal year at the end of August. Category 3 is
our in-state travel category. We've spent just over $29,000. | do expect the
remaining funds to be spent based on some heavy travel by staff in the month
of une as well as travel claims for May that weren't processed prior to June
10th. Category 30 is our training category, and as you can see, we have just
under $300 left. Those we’ll push into our reserves as we close out the fiscal '18
budget. Category 13, that's our primary category for all of our promotion
advertising public relations, international contracts, research contracts, et
cetera. We do show about $4.2 million left at this point in the fiscal year, but as
I mentioned, in March, that number is a bit deceiving. We're on a 60 to 90-day
lag on media-related invoices, so we still have April, May, and June media to
pay, and then all of our final cutstanding invoices on the rest of our contracts
and services, they typically come in at the end of June or July for the June
services. We will spend that down pretty close to what is left in terms of the
authority. I'm happy to address any questions that you all may have about the
fiscal '18 budget.

30



HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

KROLICKI:

HUTCHISON:

KROLICKI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Mr. Peterson, any concerns at all about given where we are in the calendar year
and where we are in terms of our expenditures within aur budget?

Lieutenant Governor, will you repeat your question again? Sorry.

Yes. Just given where we are in the calendar year, June 20th, and where we are
in terms of the expenditures in our budget -- | mean, for example, we're at 95%
of training, and we're in the 70s on everything else. Does that give you any
cause for concern?

For the record, David Peterson. No, we're okay. There's some issues in terms of
all of our travel for flights go on to a State credit card. We're currently
processing May. Woe still have all the June travel that will come through, and
we'll end up processing that in July. That's why you see the travel categories
look like we won't end up spending those dollars down, and | know we're sitting
here on the 20th thinking there's ten days left. We still have May travel claims
that we have been processing, and then we'll have all of the June travel claims
with all of our flights that went onto the credit card for July and August travel.
Those will end up being processed through in July.

As far as Category 31, | don't have any issues with that. It's sort of the nature of
the beast. We have several miilion dollars of media that is running, April, May,
and June, and we will process those invoices probably in July, at the latest, early
August. You have to remember, too, all of our services that are being rendered
for the month of June, we don't receive those invoices until the month of July.
So, we're tracking okay. | do meet every couple weeks with our fiscal staff and
program directors. | know it looks a little scary with ten days left, but it's just a
factor of the invoices coming in for media as well as May and all of our June
contract-related costs.

Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Other questions or comments on Agenda ltem H2.2,
the Fiscal Year '18 Budget Update.

Mr. Chairman, it's Brian Krolicki.
Please proceed.

Thank you. Just looking at the promaotion and advertising budget, I'm telling you
what you already know, but | just think it's important. We do have an election
coming up and a brand-new legislature come the new year that will need to
understand what you do. It’s kind of the same conversation we had with Brand
USA. | cannot imagine that our friends on ways and means and finance won't be

31



PETERSON:

KROLICKI:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

asking, what do we get for that extra $4 million. In the past, there have been
formulas used to track a dollar invested in NCOT correlates to, I've seen 25 to 35
return. We should really try to get 2 handle on the value of that additional
investment because it'll always be on the table. In years past, Mr. Chairman,
the Director would reach out, even send booklets, pamphlets to the new
legislators. But | think at the end of the year, before things get crazy next year
and they start going through the budgets, | think it's important to do that
outreach and demonstrate why this investment is so important to all of Nevada.
Thank you.

For the record, David Peterson. We have that in the works, Governor, through
our public affairs plan, which we're finalizing right now for fiscal '19, and we do
plan to do legislative outreach, especially to the new legislators coming in.
Something that we're also looking at, I'm working with Kyle Shulz, our research
manager, to develop out a tourism ecosystem brochure. We're starting with the
lodging tax revenue, a slightly different approach coming into this next
legislative session. Instead of just talking about the $24, 525 million a year that
we receive as three-eighths of one percent, we’ll talk about the $800 million
plus in lodging tax revenue that's generated in the state of Nevada and what
that pays for. It pays for schools and police and fire services. We are working
on that right now, and we're going ta definitely push that message through the
legislative process, that it's bigger than just our budget and our $25 million.
There's another $800 million of lodging tax revenue that's out there, and it
directly impacts every one of their constituents, within their own representative
areas an many levels, like | said, from schools to police to fire, roads, everything
you can think of. So, thank you, though, but we are definitely doing that.

It's a very compelling story. Thank you for already being on top of that, and not
to look ahead, but fiscal year '19, budgets are being constructed, drafted, and
contemplated now. Going into '19, do you anticipate these numbers to be
similar?

For the record, yes. Fiscal '19, if the Lieutenant Governor doesn't mind me
jumping ahead to H2.3, U'll walk through fiscal '19 if that's okay. lust starting at
the top, and then I'll address the expenditures, what you have in your packet is
the current fiscal '19 legislatively approved budget. A couple of changes which
I'll note that are reflected on that sheet, right now, lodging tax revenue, again,
as it was legislatively appropriated, was $25.7 million. That was based on our
final closing during the session. Again, I'm working with Kyle Shulz. We are
updating projections for next fiscal year as well as building out the projections
for '20 and '21. That's our budget, again, that we'll be building over the summer
due at the end of August. By and large, the fiscal '19 budget is more or less

32



SANTOS:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

identical with the exception of small adjustments as to the fiscal '18 budget. So,
our travel, training, operating, postage, and grant categories are similar in fiscal
'19 as they are currently in fiscal '18. The one adjustment you'll see in the
budget document is Category 05, equipment. That is the money that's going to
pay for this lovely system that we're still working with here in the chambers as
well as a mobile cart AV system down in Las Vegas. We'll actually be able to
allow our Las Vegas Commissioners to come right into our office, and we'll
connect that way as we move forward. So, those dollars came out of Category
31. That was based on working with the Governor's Finance Office. The $15.1
million that you see is reflected on our current work program, legislatively
approved budget. Again, that was a reduction of just over $152,000, but again,
that's for the system here in the chambers.

On paper, our legislatively approved budget shows about $5.1 million in
reserves. That's 71 days of reserves that we are legislatively approved to have.
We need to maintain 60 days reserve. | mean, that is the bear minimum that
we will submit a budget in August for '20 and '21. So, that is our goal, always to
have 60 days of reserve at the end of each fiscal year. You know, obviously, as
we close fiscal '18's budget, where our revenues come in at, where our
expenditures come in at, our transfers to the other agencies, we do see
reversions that come back based on positions that were either open or vacated
during the year. So, there's a lot of things that happen over the course of the
summer that determine our final balance forward from fiscal '18 into fiscal '19,
and therefore, our reserves as a direct reflection. | feel pretty good geing into
'19 right now in terms of what our budget looks like and in terms of what our
reserves are going to be, that we will continue to maintain a 60-day reserve, and
again, that is the plan for the fiscal '20-'21 budget submission as well, is to
maintain a 60-day reserve. With that, happy to address any questions that you
all might have about the fiscal '19 budget.

Herb Santos for the record. If I'm reading this right -- accounting was, like, my

" tough subject in college, but did we project to spend $400,000 more than what

we anticipated bringing in as revenue? Because, | look at the reserves, we're
bringing in 5.5, and then we spend all that money, and then our reserve is at
5.1. So, we're spending more than what we brought in since our reserve
number is less than what it was when it started?

For the record, David Peterson. You're correct. The balance forward number
that you see is coming from '18. If we spent every dollar this fiscal year in every
category, if we received the legislative approved revenues, that would be the
balance forward, is 5.5 million, and then you are correct; based on the budget

33



SANTOS:

PETERSON:

SANTQS:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

that we put together with our expenditures, we ate up some of those reserve
dollars or some of that balance forward. You're absolutely correct.

If that's something that continues, does that create an issue or not?

We will make sure that our budget maintains the 60-day reserve factor, and it's
kind of a byproduct of our expenditures for any given fiscal year, and then we
take that, divide it by 365 days to get the average daily expenditure amount.
But we will not have a reserve number that is less than 60 days reserved when
we build our fiscal '20-'21 budget, and that's inclusive of our transfers as well as
our own program costs. So, we will put the budget together to ensure that we
have a 60-day reserve, and we'll make those necessary adjustments through the
budget process.

All right. And | forget, on the rural grant programs, it's got $1,650,000. Is that
normally what we do each year, because | know we had talked about maybe
trying to increase it?

For the record, David Peterson. The $1,650,000, that's our marketing grant
program, and at the March Commission Meeting, we talked about adding
$100,000 to Category 50, which are the Projects Relating to Tourism. So, if you
look two rows below Cat 40, the way that that works is we transfer out a budget
account 1522. That's the Tourism Development Fund. We transfer $100,000 a
year into budget account 1523, which are the Projects Relating to Tourism, so
it's a different budget account. What we would do mechanically when we build
out the budget for fiscal '20 and '21 is we would add another $50,000 per fiscal
year in our budget that gets transferred into 1523. But we're going to maintain
the $1,650,000 for the marketing grant programs, and just quickly, historically,
the amount of money that's been aliocated from our budget has always been
$100,000 per fiscal year. | know there were some issues back during the
recession where all of the grant dollars weren't expended from 1523, the actual
account where those grants are paid from. But we've always had the $100,000
per fiscal year in our budget account, and again, mechanically transfer that
money into 1523,

Any other questions, Commissioners, on the fiscal year '19 legislatively
approved budget or the fiscal year '18 budget update. All right, I'm hearing
none. Mr. Peterson, please proceed.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, David Peterson. H2.4 is a brief
fiscal '19 sales PR update. I'm going to have Teri Laursen, Director of Sales and
Industry Partners, and Bethany Drysdale, our Chief Communications Officer,

34



LAURSEN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism [ June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

come up and walk the Commission through our plan for the sales and public
relations travel schedule for fiscal '19. That document is also in your packet,
and it follows the FY '19 legislatively approved budget sheet that we just went
through.

Teri Laursen, Director of Sales and Industry Partners for the record, and I'm
going to go ahead and start if you don't mind. | did notice that every time you
introduce me, you say brief, so | guess that means I'm going to be brief. All
right. A couple of quick staff updates before we lock at the travel schedule.
First of all, David Lusvardi who's based in our Las Vegas office, will be adding
Canada to his inventory of markets. David's going to be overseeing Latin
America, Australia, and now Canada. Christian Passink was handling Canada,
but that's been moved simply because now Hills Balfour has landed the Brand
USA Europe account. We anticipate a lot of fabulous things coming out from
Brand USA in Europe. Christian will have his hands full. Then David Peterson
and | are going to be going with Brand USA to Japan and South Korea and the
upcoming sales mission in July. We do anticipate possibly reentering the South
Korea, and If that's the case, then Sylvia Welsh, who is also based in Las Vegas,
will be adding South Korea. She'll be handling China, India, and South Korea.

Now, if you look at your travel schedule, you'll notice that we have added a big
consumer push as well, and | know David's been talking about that. There are
four consumer shows that are identified. We're going to be targeting San
Francisco, or the bay area, Los Angeles, southern California, Dallas, and Denver.
Now, they're identified as consumer shows, but each of the consumer shows
are going to really evolve into more of a domestic sales mission. We will be
adding a trade component with every consumer push as well as PR and media. |
know Bethany will be expounding on that, and it's going to make it more bang
for your buck for our partners to accompany with us on those consumer shows,
because they're really going to be more domestic sales missions.

Additionally, locking at the travel schedule, you're going to notice two themed
fam opportunities. In the past, we've done more market-driven opportunities.
This next fiscal year, we're going to be theming some fams that are not going to
be market specific. We're going to invite and encourage participation from all of
our international markets as well as domestic, and if there's an operator
interested in a particular theme, then this is going to be the right fam for him or
her.

We will also be inviting partners to join us on two international sales missions,
and what we've done this time instead of doing long haul sales missions like to
India or China, we're keeping them closer to home so that we can encourage

35



DRYSDALE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

maore partners to join us. We will be conducting a sales mission to Mexico as
well as Canada, and again, PR will be joining us on those efforts as well.

Brenda and | will be working on posting a job for our Rural Programs Manager.
Our goal is to have that position posted at the end of next week, and that
person -- and it would have been Kari, but that person, next fiscal, will be
looking at creating programs that will help our rural communities identify
products and develop their rural tourism products. We were doing kind of an
experiential lab or experiential tourism. We're still going to put that in place. It
just might be later on in the fiscal year once this new person comes on board.

We returned from IPW this year. IPW was held in Denver. Actually, it was May
18th through the 24th, and | don't know how many you were here a year ago,
but a year ago, | presented the request for support to have a bigger, better
trade booth and more presence at IPW. And at that time, you were all behind
it. You all supported it. Well, | have to say the marketing got behind it, like, in
spades. They were all over it. With worked with Freeman at IPW, and I'm sorry,
I did not send these pictures to Las Vegas, but | do have some pictures of what
that booth looked like and our presence at IPW. I'm happy to share if you want
to just pass them around and take a look. ©h, thank you.

In Denver this year -- and we've never done this at IPW. We actually ended up
with ten booths. We purchased four. RSCVA had three. We had presence from
North Lake Tahoe and Silver Legacy, THE ROW and of course, Elko was there.
Our hope is, of course, that when we go to Anaheim, we're going to have even
more partners join us and so that Nevada has an even bigger presence in
Anaheim, and then when it moves to Las Vegas, we just want to scream Nevada.

And let's see. Well, David already mentioned we did review 216 grants for FY19
for the first cycle. We will be making grant recommendations totaling
$1,006,203, recommending funding for 178 of those grants, and we'll be
presenting those at a special meeting on Monday. Thank you.,

For the record, Bethany Drysdale. | just want to add on to what Teri was talking
about with the integrated sales PR marketing efforts going into the next year. |
liked how Marty put it about checking your mirrors every once in a while, and
we did that with the VR roadshow back in September. We looked at the results
of that, and if you remember, that was taking our VR experience on the road in
California, ending in LA and San Diego with a big sales event. We had media
there as well, and then we followed up the following month with individual
media appointments in LA, We love that approach, really blanketing a market
where there's a strong consumer audience as well as a media audience. |

36



HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

should add we just did Boise. We did the same thing in Boise with a sales and
media event last week.

Going forward, we are tagging onto some of these consumer shows that have
been identified for next year. We have three markets that we're going to do a
full integrated presence, LA, Denver, and the Bay Area, great feeder markets,
great consumer markets. These are markets where we will have marketing
presence. We'll have the consumer show, media appointments, sales
appointments and big events. We'll have a lot of fun bringing Nevada to those
markets, a really concerted whole Nevada message. We're very excited about
that.

And then to expand on what Teri said about the themed fams, in the past, we
have required all of our international markets to put together a group fam. We
have a fam from Mexico. We have a fam from China, a fam from Australia, and
so on. There's only a couple of us in our office, and that gets to be spending all
of our time on the road and showing these fam participants all of Nevada, and
it's not really targeted to what they are writing about.

Because of that, we've identified three themes for media fams that we're going
to highlight over the course of the next year. One will be food and drink and
relaxation, and that'll be right after the Global Tourism Summit. We'll have an
adventure fam in the spring, and we'll have a winter sports fam in the winter.
We're inviting media from all of our international markets and domestic
markets that really focus on those themes. Rather than taking them on an
entire roadshow of Nevada, we'll be focusing very specifically on those themes,
and the writers coming will be writers that really do write about those things. |
think it will be a lot more efficient on our time, our budget, as well as the
writers' times and our market reps as well. We're very excited about moving
forward with that. So, I'm happy to answer any questions about those changes
and how we're doing things going forward, and then the next meeting in
September, we'll get into that public affairs plan, as you mentioned, Governor.

Thank you, Ms. Drysdale. Any questions for Ms. Drysdale or Ms. Laursen on our
fiscal year '19 sales and PR update?

This is Commissioner Newman for the record. At IPW, | believe the importance
of travel writers and the opportunities that they present us were rewarded
when two travel writers that attended the Cowboy Poetry Gathering in Elko
received the International Travel Writers Story of the Year. So, IPW covers the
world, and the story that won the award was based by two travel writers who
were in Elko, and their story was about the Gathering. Thank you for your

37



DRYSDALE:

NEWMAN:

KROULICKI:

DRYSDALE:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

efforts in bringing travel writers. The importance of them seeing our rural
communities is, you can't really put a price on it because of the efforts that they
do on our behalf. We benefited greatly from that, so thank you.

I should mention there must be magic in Elko, because a travel writer that went
out there from the UK several years ago won the Best Travel Writer of the Year
for the British Travel Writers Guild Association, for his story that he wrote on
Elko, and that was all the travel writers in the UK up for that award, and he won.
So, we're very proud of our travel writers that win those big awards.

Don Newman for the record. There is something magical about Elko, and |
would encourage our old partners and our new partners to come out and say
helle and see just what this magical appeal is, because everybody seems to have
a good time when they do come there. Thank you.

Bethany, you mentioned on the fam tour, you're going to break them up, and
one of them is going to be the food and drink. If you need a Commissioner to
volunteer, we are here for you, and for the record, that's Commissioner
Newman.

Duly noted. Thank you.

Great. Any other questions or comments on Agenda ltem H2.4. All right. Ms,
Laursen, Ms. Drysdale, thank you very much. Mr. Peterson.

Thank you, sir. For the record, David Peterson. H2.5, the Arts, Culture, &
Heritage Guide. In your packets, you each have a copy of the final printed piece.
I'm going to let Brenda Nebesky take you through this because this was her
baby. | think she just did an amazing job bringing this piece to life, literally, and
she'll talk about the cover, working with the Arts Council and the Museums and
History and the Nevada Indian Commission executive directors, administrators,
and their teams. | just want to say quickly | was out at powwow, which was
amazing, over the weekend, and of course ran into Sherry Rupert, and | ended
up schlepping boxes around for her on a cart. | had the opportunity to meet
with Paiute elder Ralph Burns and actually show him how the cover worked,
which | think he thought was the most amazing thing in the world. | could show
my hand behind the cover and him coming to life doing the dance. It was
fantastic. I'm super excited with this guide, and we're going to share a little
more information as we move forward with it, but I'll be quiet and let Brenda
talk about it.

38



NEBESKY:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

GEARY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. As | promised Commissioner Arger, we have
our premiere issue of the Arts, Culture, & Heritoge Guide released this month. it
was praduced by Meredith Media, but it was a collaborative effort between the
Department's cultural agencies to engage a cultural audience. This month,
90,000 of the guides will be distributed through Midwest Living Magazine. An
additional 15,000 will be available through our state museums and other
cultural partners. The guide was supported by digital ads with many of
Meredith's  popular magazine brands and a microsite on
travelnevada.com/arisguide18, which features assets related to the guide that
were captured along the way by the Meredith team, more stories, video,
photos, music, et cetera, lots of fun. We're extremely proud of the cover. As
Dave explained, features an interactive augmented reality experience. If you
download an app, which I'm happy to demonstrate for you after the meeting if
you haven't had a chance to do it yet. And within the editorial captures a wide
range of Nevada cultural artists, events, opportunities. We were limited to 84
pages in this issue, but we promise this is just the beginning of our conversation
with this audience. The next cultural guide will be produced by Nevada
Magozine in FY19, and we know they'll bring their special brand of Nevada
knowledge and professionalism as this becomes a trusted resource for the
traveler.

Great. Thank you, Ms. Nebesky. Are there any questions, comments on Agenda
Item H2.5? All right, I'm not hearing any. Mr. Peterson, please.

Thank you. H3 is a Nevada Magazine update, so it's my pleasure to introduce
Janet Geary, who's been waiting patiently for the last two hours, and I'm going
to give her as much time as she wants. All three minutes are yours, Janet. No,
I'm just kidding. There's some really wonderful things that are coming up that
we're doing right now that are coming up in fiscal '19, and | wanted you all to be
aware of what's happening with Nevada Magazine as we continue to push
forward the magazine's efforts. So, thank you.

Thank you, David. I'm Janet Geary, Publisher of Nevada Magozine, and I'm
really happy to tell you what's going on with the magazine this year. We're
having a very busy summer. We are continuing our train-themed issues. |If
you've read the last couple issues of the magazine, this whole year we're doing
train-themed issues. We're having stories on the history of the trains in Nevada,
the Great Verdi Train Robbery, The Race to Bullfrog by the two competing
railroads, et cetera, the transitory train towns with Sparks and Wadsworth, and
continuing that theme throughout the year. It's in anticipation of the 150th
celebration next year of the connection of the railroads at Promontory Point.

39



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Also, in keeping with that theme, our 2018 historical calendar was all historical
train photos, and our 2018 Silver State scavenger hunt, which is going to be in
this next edition, announced in this next edition, all has railroad locations as to
where to go to take your photos with the July-August issue of the magazine. So,
we're really keeping that theme going, and our readers, we've received a lot of
input from our readers. They absolutely love anything having to do with trains,
and so it's been a great theme for us.

We also have in our July-August issue, if you look right after the budget, there is
a picture of our latest issue's cover. Unfortunately, it's not here yet. It is at the
press. This picture is a historical masterpiece | might say. Peter Barton asked us
to come over and take some photos of the trains at the museum. This is the
only time these trains will be available for a photo all together. So, it's very
historic. He asked us to do this. My art director, who is an FAA drone
photographer, took her drone over there and took this picture. And like | say,
we're just so thrilled to have it on the front cover of the magazine. It will be out
next week. Unfortunately, we don't have it yet, but then on the next page are
all the features that are in the magazine for this next issue, the July-August
issue, including a couple stories on Tonopah.

When we were out at Rural Roundup, we went through Tonopah. It was
absolutely amazing, the revitalization that's going on in Tonopah, and we
wanted to do a couple stories. We did that one called The Middle of
Everywhere and zalso The Tonapah Time Machine. We talked about the mining
museurmn down there, and so were going to go to Tonopah for an event, hand
out magazines to the residents and visitors, and also present some “best of”
awards to the Mizpah Hotel and the TLC, the Tahoe Liquor Company, who has
great whiskey if anybody's interested, not that | drink any, no.

We have changed the events and shows distribution going forward. We are no
longer distributing events and shows in the Las Vegas airport, but we are
distributing them through Certified Folder. This was a cost-cutting move for the
magazine as well as to try some new distribution routes for us, and we are still
distributing, though, this product through Nevada throughout northern and
southern Nevada, and it highlights, of course, shows and cultural events for the
coming months for people to plan their visits. We have printed our 2018 rides
guide, and | apologize. The one that was on back counter was our -- | mean, this
is our 2018-19, If you got the wrong copy, the new ones are on the back, but
this guide we print every year. We hand it out at bike events, motorcycle
events. They are available at RV parks, and all of our advertisers get many
copies of this guide, and it shows itineraries on where to go to drive through the
state and take your motorcycle on a trip.

40



HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

GEARY:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We're also currently working on the second annual Las Vegas Wedding Guide in
conjunction with the Las Vegas Wedding Chamber of Commerce and completing
the sales right now. We're also talking to the Nevada Off-Highway Vehicle
Program. We're talking to them about producing a guide of Nevada's off-road
trails, just like our ghost town map that we did. We should hopefully get the
information for that in the next month or so.

If you saw this on the back counter as well, this is our third focus, and this is a
photographer symposium. It's actually happening this Friday, and if you would
like to come, Kippy said you're more than welcome to come. We have 72
people that are currently signed up for the forum. if you take a look at this, it's
all different photographers doing talks and workshops, and then in the
afternoon, they will be going out to Silver Saddle Ranch for an outside
workshop. If you're a photographer or would like to be, please join us. It is free,
so you're more than welcome to come out. It starts at nine o'clock at the
Brewery Arts Center on Friday morning.

OQur new website is getting ready toc be launched. It will offer online
subscriptions and also allow access to our archives. Obviously, the magazine is
82 years old this year. We're getting our archives online as quickly as we can.
We will have at least the last 20 years of magazines online for our online
subscribers when we launch in luly, and also, we will be producing the State
Visitors Guide this year. We're already selling advertising for that guide, and
also, as Brenda mentioned, we're going to be writing and producing the second
annual Arts and Culture Guide. We want to continue with the guide's goals that
they currently have with more emphasis on events and heritage, including some
historical facts and photos that we have in our collection, because, you know,
we love the history. We will be adding some of that to the historical guide, or
excuse me, to the Arts and Culture Guide. 5o, | think | covered everything. If
you have any questions for me, I'm happy to answer them.

Ms. Geary, thank you very much. Questions, Commissioners, under Agenda
Item for Nevada Magozine update.

Herb Santos for the record. You guys do a great job.
Thank you.
When you look at the off-road trail guide you're going to do, and | just sort of

learned about this as someone that was out and having fun enjoying riding on
an ATV. What | would hate for is if we had some type of guide that made the

41



GEARY:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

MANFREDI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

representation that here are some Nevada trails a family to go out on without
calling to attention there might be what | would call draconian type regulations
in different counties. | don't know if we have anything in those guides that
would refer a person to those regulations. For example, Washoe County has
one that says that if the sound of your vehicle disturbs any house within | think,
500 yards, you could be guilty of a misdemeanor. I'd hate to have someone
have a bad experience and they say, gosh, we locked at this guide, and there
was nothing in there that said that there be any rules that one would not
expect. Do we have anything in there that at least points a person to make sure
that they check all county rules and ordinances so that they're in compliance
when they enjoy the trails?

We will be working with the Off-Highway Vehicle Program, which is a state of
Nevada program. We will make sure that they give us all the rules and
regulations so that we can include them on our map and our brochure. We do
this with our motorcycle guide. We make sure that everybody is aware of the
rules and regulations of the road for the state of Nevada, wear your helmet and
all of that kind of thing and also some precautions on riding in the heat or
whatever. We always try to include those kinds of informational things, for the
riders, and we will do that in this guide as well. Thank you for the suggestion.

I'm sorry, and | forgot one other thing. | have it right here, and this is our new
marketing program. We are doing a direct mail to 50,000 households in Reno-
Sparks area. Hopefully, some of you that live up there will get a copy of this.
This is the front of our postcard, the back, and it's on your very last page of your
packet. This is actually going out today, so we're very excited to have it out
there, and it is a subscription program so that we hope to gain a lot of
subscribers from the 50,000 people that we are sending this to. Okay, any other
questions for me? No. Thank you.

Ms. Geary, thank you very much again, and that will take us on to Agenda Item
H4. Mr. Peterson.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. For the record, David Peterson. With us today
is Tony Manfredi, and | really appreciate him being here. He's actually on a
family vacation up in Lake Tahoe, but he just couldn't stay away from all of you
on the Commission on Tourism. He's going to enlighten us on what's going on in
the world of Arts and Culture and the Nevada Arts Council in general. So, thank
you very much, Tony, for being here.

Thank you. Tony Manfredi for the record, Executive Director with the Nevada
Arts Council. It's a pleasure and a privilege to be here. When last | addressed

42



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

this body, it was three-and-a-half months | was on the job, and I've made it to
ten months and learning a lot every day. So, it's a fantastic opportunity, and 1
actually can’t thank David Peterson enough for his help and support in helping
me through this process along with Julia Arger, who | will greatly miss in her role
as Board Chair for the Nevada Arts Council. So, thank you to you both.

Many of you may know the Nevada Arts Council and what it does. Just a quick
recap, we're really charged with expanding access to arts and culture
throughout the state and to provide public participation to arts and cuiture. The
investment in state's arts and culture by the Nevada Arts Council provides
residents, as many of you know, with a very rich quality of life. It contributes to
the diversity of Nevada's economy, its workforce development, tourism, of
course, and it improves education with the use of the arts. We support, fund,
and present arts and culture events, productions, concerts, festivals, ethnic
celebrations, arts education opportunities in schools, artist residencies, and
healing arts programs. One of the things 1 wanted to bring up during this time
was a report that came out from a group called National Association of State
Arts Agencies. The Arts Council is a state arts agency, one of 56 state art
agencies, including territories, in the United States, and NASAA as we call it is a
national group that helps support the work we do.

The State Arts and Cultural Production in 2015, this is a creative economy state
profile. Nevada, this is from the US Bureau of Economic Analysis, reports that
arts and culture production accounts for actually, over $6 billion and 4.4% of the
Nevada economy contributing 39,304 jobs, some impressive numbers. That
number incfudes core arts and cultural production as well as supporting arts and
cultural productions, so things like performing arts companies, performing arts
presenters, rental and leasing, office support services, and construction. 5o,
arts and culture have a vast swath in our state. Cne last point of note along
this, in a regional comparison, in the west, Washington and California are ahead
of Nevada, but we are actually ahead of Colorado, Utah, Oregon, Hawaii,
Arizona, Montana, New Mexico, Idaho, Wyoming, and Alaska in our
comparisons for arts and culture in our state. So, we have room to grow in
surpassing Washington and California, and we're excited to be a part of being
able to do that.

The last component that | wanted to address was, again, from the Stote Arts
Agency Perspective, is a really important strength -- a really important
compaonent in strengthening tourism. Many travelers, a lot of what was already
talked about here today, but many travelers pick vacation spots not only for
their natural resources, but for their cultural offerings. Visitors will plan or
extend their trips, enjoy area's unique food, history, art, or music. Cultural

43



HUTCHISON:

Upcoming Meetings

PETERSON:

MNevada Commission on Tourism | lune 20, 2018
Departrent of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

tourism is a key component of the economic growth offering local communities
a diversified and sustainable means for creating jobs and attracting revenues,
and this information that I'm reading from here is actually from NASAA. Visitors
to historic sites, again, this is -- that's already been described here, and cuitural
attractions stay longer and spend more money than other kinds of tourists. And
by engaging in cultural tourism, planning, marketing, the state's unique arts
offerings, we can attract more visitors and augment the impact of tourism as a
contributor to state economies.

Lastly, the publication concludes that culture and tourism have a mutually
beneficial relationship which can strengthen the attractiveness and
competitiveness of destinations, regions, and counties. Culture is increasingly
an important element of the tourism product which creates distinctiveness in a
crowded global marketplace, and at the same time, tourism provides an
important means of enhancing culture and creating income which can support
and strengthen cultural heritage.

So, some great opportunities for us and things that we're already doing here
with the Arts Council, with the Indian Commission, and our museum partners
and family along with the tourism side of TravelNevada. We're really excited
about the opportunities that we have moving forward. | want everyone here to
know that the Arts Council is eager and ready and willing to help support
tourism, to be a part of it, because we know what we bring to the table, and
we're anxious to work together, and it's been very open with the environment
that David is helping to create over in our large agency. So, with that, | will be
happy to answer any questions.

Mr. Manfredi, thank you very much for your update and your report, and thank
you for taking time from your family to be with us today. We really appreciate
your efforts. Any questions or comments Commissioners on the Arts Council
update. All right, I'm not hearing any. Mr. Manfredi, thank you again for a
thorough and detailed report. Appreciate again your efforts to be here. Mr.
Peterson.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. David Peterson. Upcoming meetings, | just
want to remind the Commission that our next full Commission meeting is
September 19th at one o'clock. Please let me know if that still works for all of
you. We'd like to keep that date and time if at all possible. As far as the
Marketing Committee meeting now that we have the two new members and we
officially have BVK and Noble Studios and the Fahlgren Mortine contracts

44



HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

approved, Dee and | will reach out to the Marketing Committee, and we will
work toward getting a meeting, hopefully, in early August. That's my plan right
now. So, that's all the comments | have to say about this particular Agenda
item.

Thank you very much. That closes out, then, our Agenda Item |

Commissioner Comments

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

KROLICKI:

And moves us to Agenda Iltem J, which is Commissioner Comments. Mr.
Peterson, you need to say something else?

Lieutenant Governor, my apologies. For the record, David Peterson. | need to
remind the Commission that we will have the phone only meeting -- thank you,
Dee -- to approve the grants, the first cycle of fiscal '19 grants on Monday at
1:00 p.m., and that's a phone only meeting. 50, my sincere apologies for leaving
that out of my notes.

No, thank you for the reminder. | think most of us have that calendared and
appreciate your follow-up. All right, Agenda Item J, Commissioner Comments.
This is the time, Commissioners, for any comments you'd like to make during
the course of our meeting here on any subject that you think is worthy of
consideration and comment.

Mr. Chairman, it's Brian Krolicki, just two quick comments if | might. The first is |
thought this meeting was just superb in terms of bringing in new folks, but it
also highlighted, Julia, your world, the Arts Council. And David, you said it, but |
was going to do it if no one else had. Sherry, again, an amazing and
extraordinary job at the powwow for Father's Day. Not only is it a great thing
here, it's a great thing around the country. You've done an exquisite job. | had
issues that kept me away, but my wife, who's part of your Indian Commission,
and my daughter, who's volunteered with all of you before, they loved it once
again. Thank you for the magic you all do out there at Stewart for the powwow.

The other item I'd like to just mention, you know, everyone thought the
sesquicentennial was over, like, four years ago. It wasn't. It just ended last
week. I'm looking at Commissioner Newman and others who are part of the
Sesquicentennial Commission. [ can still say it. It just rolls off the tongue, but
we just finished spending our last dime, if you will, to the museum folks. Later
this year, Governor Sandoval, who's insisted it be, before Nevada Day, we’ll
have a lovely opening for the Battle Born Hall on the 2™ floor of the capitol.
Three-quarters of a million if not even more have gone to the Battle Born Hall’s

45



HUTCHISON:

ARGER:

HUTCHISON:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

LOGOTETA:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

creation. | hope we can all be there for its opening. | just wanted you all to
know that your Sesquicentennial Commission continues its hard work as of last
week, but we are now officially closed. The bank accounts closed, but there
were so many cool! things that we were able to do. But the magic that tourism
and our rural partners played in all of this, back to that theme, was just
exquisite. So, again, happy 154th Nevada, but, you know, 150 is still going,
going, well. That's all. Thank you.

Thank you, Governor Krolicki, and again, thank you for all your efforts in heading
the efforts on the sesquicentennial. The Governor put you in charge of that,
and you held hundreds of events and made that a very special time in our
state's history. So, thank you for chairing that effort and all you did in that
regard. All right, any other Commissioners who would like to comment under
this Agenda item?

Julie Arger, just a quick thank you for your kind words and recognition, and |
guess | really want to leave with a parting recommendation. | would sure like to
see asterisks behind the three names representing the Indian Commission,
Museums and History, and the Nevada Arts Council and make us voting
members of the Commission. That's my parting recommendation. Thank you.

Commissioner Arger, thank you very much. | don't think anybody here would
disagree with that recommendation. Any other comments, Commissioners,
under Agenda Iterm J? All right, I'm not hearing any. We will close out Agenda
Item ).

Move on to public comment under Agenda Item K. Are there any members of
the public in Carson City who wish to present comment to the Commission?

We do have somebody coming up.
Please come forward and state your name for the record.

Hi, Tony Logoteta, Chief Operating Officer out of the Reno Air Racing
Association, and of course, we put on the National Championship Air Races
every year. And we've been kind of out of sight, so | wanted to come down and
say hi, introduce myself. As | was listening to some of the presentations earlier,
some of the videos they were showing really kind of struck me, and the “Don’t
Fence Me In” was one of the things. | don't know if everybody knows what we
do, but we race airplanes over the high desert north of Reno at speeds up to

46



HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | fune 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

500 miles an hour. | don't know how much less fenced in you can get than that,
so we should talk.

And also, | think Brand USA left, but our international outreach is also quite
extensive, and one of the things that popped into my head as he was talking
was a guy named Graham Frew. He brought a plane called Full Noise from New
Zealand last year, and he's going to do it again this year. Now, what's involved is
he takes it apart, puts it in a shipping box, puts it on a boat, ships it here,
offloads it onto a semi-trailer, brings it to Reno, takes it out, puts it together,
flies it for a week, and then reverses the process to get it back. He brings family.
He brings friend. He brings crew. He brings cameras. When he goes back,
there's TV shows stories regarding his involvement here at the races, and in
those stories, you hear him talk about the national championship air races in
Reno, Nevada, on a New Zealand TV station.

I love this event. | love this state, and | love this area, and | have always loved
the exposure that this event brings to us here. We couldn't do it without the
support of you guys, of this Commission, of other groups in the area, the
casinos, the RSCVA. | could go on and on with all our supporters. You guys are
vital to our survival and our existence, and | just wanted to thank you all, and
thank you for your support both in the past and your continued support into the
future. We're really excited about this year. We have a full civilian and military
lineup of performers. Our race classes are virtually full, couple spots still to fill.
We're bringing out more than 5,000 students this year as part of our continued
educational cutreach, and | would just kind of finish with a couple of invites.
One is to come out and see, and two is my door is open any time. My phone
line is open much to the chagrin of my family sometimes, but it's always open. |
would love to hear any input that anyone has and just love to talk any time. So,
just thank you very much and look forward to talking to you all more. Thanks.

Thank you, Mr. Logoteta, appreciate you coming today. Any other comments
from members of the public in Carson City?

No.

All right. Any comments from members of the public here in Las Vegas? I'm not
seeing any. That will close out Agenda Item K, then, on public comment, and we
will move to Agenda Item L, and that is adjournment, and we will do so in the
memory of our friend and colleague, Kari Frilot, and remember her in our
thoughts and prayers and adjourn in her honor. So, is there a motion to
adjourn?

47



VASWANI:

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 20, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Aye, Vaswani.

Commissioner Vaswani has moved to adjourn. Is there a second?

Herh Santos for the record, second.

Commissioner Santos has seconded the motion, and we will take any comment
on that motion. Hearing none, all those in favor of adjourning and doing so in
the memory of Kari Frilot, please indicate by saying aye.

Aye.

Any opposed, nay. Motion carries unanimously. Thank you all very much for
being here, and that concludes our meeting.

The meeting adjourned at 3:29 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism



June 25, 2018
NCOT Meeting

Draft Minutes
For Approval

@@ | NEVADA

TravelNevada.com

ENC
)







Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 25, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
June 25, 2018

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 1:00 p.m. on June 25, 2018 at 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701 and by phone conference.

Call to Order
Lt. Governor Hutchison, Chair, called the meeting to order at 1:06 p.m.

Commissioners Present:

Lieutenant Governor Mark A. Hutchison, Chair
Bon Newman

Herb Santos, Jr.

Brian Krolicki

Bob Stoldal

Phil DelLone

Bob Morse

Mike Vaswani - attended late

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Julia Arger

Richard Arnold

Denise Miller

Rossi Ralenkotter

Bob Cashell

Cindy Carano, Vice Chair

Staff present:

David Peterson, Interim Director

Brenda Nebesky, Interim Deputy Director
Teri Laursen

Christian Passink

Sarah Bradley, DAG

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

HUTCHISQON: Well, good afternoon everyone. We will go ahead and call the Nevada
Commission on Tourism meeting to order. We'll begin with roll call. Mr.
Peterson if you would call roll to make sure that we've got a quorum.



PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

DELONE:

PETERSON:

MORSE:

PETERSON:

NEWMAN:

PETERSON:

SANTOS:

PETERSON:

KROLICKI:

PETERSON:

STOLDAL:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISCN:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 25, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. Lieutenant Governor Hutchison?
I'm here.

Vice Chair Carano? We're going to mark her absent excused, she may join us at
some point. Commissioner DelLone?

Present.
Commissioner Morse?
Present

Commissioner Miller. We’ll mark her absent / excused. Commissioner
Newman?

On the phone, yes.

Thank you. Commissioner Ralenkotter is unable to attend today, we'll mark him
absent / excused. Commissioner Santos, Jr.?

Present.

Commissioner Cashell have you joined us yet? Commissioner Vaswani are you
on? Commissioner Krolicki?

Here.

Thank you, Commissioners Arger are you on and Commissioner Arnold? we'll
mark them absent, excused. Commissioner Stoldal?

Present.
Thank you. Okay. | can confirm we do have a quorum, Lieutenant Governor.

Great Mr. Peterson, thank you very much. We will move on to Agenda Item B
Public Comment

Are there any members of the public who are on the phone or, this is being
broadcast elsewhere, so anyone else who would like to come before the

2



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 25, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Commission and present public comment? I'm not hearing any. That takes us
to agenda item C.

FY19 1% Cycle Rural Markketing Grants Recormnmended Allocation

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

LAURSEN:

HUTCHISON:

FY19 1% Cycle Rural Markketing Grants Recommended Allocation, for possible
action by the Commission. Mr. Peterson, please kick this off.

Thank you. For the record, David Peterson. In your packets you all have a copy
of the 1% Cycle fiscal 19 grant recommendations. At this time, I’'m going to let
Teri Laursen, Director of Sales and Industry Partners team walk you through the
grant recommendations that were reviewed and approved by the Territory
Advisory Committee a week ago today.

For the record, Teri Laursen, Director of Sales and Industry Partners. | come
before you today to request approval of the FY19 First Cycle Rural Marketing
Grants.

Rural Marketing Grants help the communities of Nevada market their
destination to potential visitors around the world in an effort to generate
overnight stays. The funds are intended to develop, promote and improve
tourism to and within the state. TravelNevada awards $1.65 million per year to
rural partners for a wvariety of marketing projects which include video
production; online marketing, radio, television and print advertising; brochures;
tourism community assessments; attending travel/trade shows and more. Non-
profits and local tourism entities are eligible to apply for fuding in this program.

Christian Passink and | reviewed and discussed the grants with Territory
Advisory Committee at a meeting on June 18, 2018 and came to a consensus on
the recommendations that are before you today.

This year we received 216 grant applications requesting $1,994, 081. We are
recommending funding for 178 projects totaling $1,006,203. This would leave a
balance of $643,797 for the second cycle. There was one first-time applicant.

We are happy to entertain questions or comments you may have about the
recommendations before you.

Ms. Laursen, thank you very much for your report and introduction. Members
of the Commission, after review of the materials, do you have any questions
about the FY19 Rural Marketing Grants? Or comments?



Nevada Commission an Tourism | June 25, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

DELONE: Move to approve.

HUTCHISON: | have a motion for approval. |s there a second?

SANTOS: Herb Santos for the record, I'll second.

HUTCHISON: Any discussion on the motion? Hearing none, those in favor signify by saying
aye.

GROUP: Aye.

HUTCHISON: Any opposed nay. Motion carries unanimously. Thank you very much. That
takes us off agenda item C to agenda item D.

Commissioner Comments

HUTCHISON: Commissioners are there any comments you would like to make at this special
meeting?

NEWMAN: This is Commissioner Newman. | would like to say thank you to Teri, Christian
and Mary for stepping up at a tough time to continue this process that Kari had
started. They had to review about 60% of the grant applications. Again, thank
you for your time in getting us through this. Rural Nevada appreciates you
suppart.

LAURSEN: Thank you,

HUTCHISON: Well said Commissioner Newman, thank you. Any other comments from other

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

DELONE:

Commissioners? Not hearing any. We'll close out agenda item D and move on
to agenda item E.

Are there any members of the public on the phone or where this is being
broadcast who would like to present public comment to the Commission?

For the record, Dave Peterson. Lieutenant Governor, | would like to clarify the
motion. Does Commissioner DeLone need to state the full motion for the

record before the vote is taken?

I'd be more than happy to.



PETERSON:

DELONE:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 25, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you.
Phil DeLone for the record. The Nevada Commission on Tourism approves the
expenditure of 51,006,203 for the fiscal year 19 1* Cycle Rural Marketing Grants

to the receipients as outlined by the staff recommendations.

We'll go back to agenda item C. We'll reopen that.

FY19 1% Cycle Rural Markketing Grants Recommended Allocation

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

Adjournment

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

DELONE:

HUTCHISON:

You have all heard the official motion. Do we still have our second by Herb
Santos?

Herb Santos for the record, I'll second.

Great. Any discussion or comments on the more detailed motion? Hearing
none. Those in favor signify by saying aye.

Aye.

Any opposed nay. Motion carries unanimously. Thank you very much. That
takes us off agenda item C back to Public Comment.

Are there any members of the public besides Mr. Peterson who would like to
mazake public comment? That takes us off agenda item E to agend item F,
Adjoournment.

Is there a motion to adjourn? Please identify yourself.
So moved.

Move to adjourn. Do | have a second?

Second.

Thank you, Commissioner Delone. Is there any comments on the motion?
Hearing none, those in favor signify by saying aye.

5



Nevada Commission on Tourism | june 25, 2018
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

GROUP: Aye.
HUTCHISON: Any opposed, nay. Motion carries unanimously. Thank you very much ladies
and gentlemen for being at this special meeting and we are adjourned.

PETERSON: Thank you Lieutenant Governor and Commissioners.

The meeting adjournad at 1:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism



exada
OVERNOR’S
GLOBAL TOURISM

SUMMIT



! L J ]



ey do
OVERNOR’S
GLOBAL TOURISM
SUMMIT

NEVADA WELCOMES THE WORLD

November 12-14
Silver Legacy at THE ROW

CONFERENCE AGENDA

OPTIONAL ACTIVITIES:

Monday, Nov. 12, 2018
International buyers/media and Summit guests arrive in Reno

Activities - 4 day — some options {top 3 are in bold):
e 1:30 p.m.-4:30 p.m.
Midtown Foodie and Murals Tour
Event capped at 16 participants
$65 per person
Walking tour is 1.3 miles and includes 6 stops at various restaurants in the Midtown District. Highlights of the
murals includes two local artists.

e 1:.00 p.m.-4:30 p.m.
Shopping — Legends Outlets (shuttle service)
Shuttle will provide round-trip service from the Silver Legacy to Outlets at Legends. Shuttle seats 34 passengers.
Legends to provide coupon books to shoppers.

e 1:00pm -3:00pm
Behind the Scenes Pasta making and wine pairing with Eldorado’s Pasta Shop Executive Chef lvano Centemeri
Eldorado’s La Strada
Event capped at 20 participants

$25.00 per person

Wine Pairing Sponsored by THE ROW

Class includes:

Pasta ingredients and technique for three varieties

3 Course Meal Lunch @ La Strada with pasta dishes & wine pairings

TravelNevada staff, event planning team on-site

2:00-5:00 p.m.
Exhibitor set-up
Grande Exposition Hall

6:30 - 8:30 p.m.

Meet and Greet Reception
Cin Cin — Eldorado

018 Nevada Global Tourism Summit | SILVER LEGACY NOVEMBER 12-14, 2018



CONFERENCE - DAY ONE

Tuesday, Nov. 13, 2018

7:00-8:45 a.m.

Exhibitor set-up
Grande Exposition Hall

7:00a.m.-7:45a.m.
Yoga/Mindfulness Session

8:00a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
Registration desk open
Grande Exposition Hall Level

8:00 a.m. —9:00 a.m.

Networking Breakfast
Grand Exposition Hall Salon

9:00 a.m. — 10:00 a.m.

Opening Session and Welcome Remarks {10 minutes each}

David Peterson — Interim Director, Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs

TBD - Nevada Commission on Tourism

Phil DeLone — CED, RSCVA

Hillary Schieve — Mayor, City of Reno

Rick Murdock — Vice President of Government Affairs, Eldorade Resorts downtown Reno
Grand Exposition Hall

10:00 a.m. —11:00 a.m.

Keynote Speaker

Jay Baer, President, Convince & Convert

Talk Triggers - Turn Your Customers Into Volunteer Marketers

Word of mouth is responsible for as much as fifty percent of all purchases, yet almost nobody has an actual plan to generate it.

in this fast-paced, dynamic modern presentation, Jay Bear presents you with a simple, yet critical choice: do you want to be the
same, or do you want to be different? When you offer a differentiated, talkable customer experience, it compels conversation.

And when customers talk, they recruit new customers...for free.

Grand Exposition Hall

11:00 a.m.—11:30 a.m.
Baer Book Signing/Networking

11:30 a.m. — 12:45 p.m.

Lunch Presentation

TravelNevada's international sales/marketing programs - 4 international sales reps (Canada, France, Germany and UK)
Grand Exposition Hall

2018 Nevada Global Tourism Summit | SILVER LEGACY NOVEMBER 12-14, 2018



1:00-2:00 p.m.

Learning Labs {1/2-hour each)

Topics/Speakers:

Blockchain - Juston Berg, Project Manager, Blockchains

AR/VR — Dan Ferguson, EVP Digital Interactive and Partner at Groove Jones
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) - TBD

Silver Baron C, D, E

2:15=3:15 p.m.

Adam Sacks, Founder and President, Tourism Economics

Expectations and Risks for the Economy and Travel

The travel industry has enjoyed nearly continuous growth for more than seven years. Analysts from all corners are reasonably
asking how much longer this growth cycle can last. Rising risks are only amplifying the volume of these questions. Adam Sacks
will survey the state of the US and global economies and share his firm’s view of the implications for the Nevada industry over
the coming year.

Grand Exposition Hall

3:15-3:30 p.m. {coffee, tea and snacks)
Networking/Refreshment Break
Exhibit Area

3:30-4:15 p.m.

Nevada’s Arts, Culture and Heritage Tourism

Tony Manfredi — Executive Director, Nevada Arts Council

Peter Barton — Administrator, Nevada Division of Museums and History
Sherry Rupert — Executive Director, Nevada Indian Commission

Grand Exposition Hall

4:15 - 5:15 p.m.

Phil DeLone - CEQ, Reno-Sparks Convention & Visitors Authority

Marily Mora — President/CEQ, Reno-Tahoe International Airport

Tourism Collaboration — You're Not in This Alone

The Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority will share the strategy that changed the trajectory of the destination -
collaborating with destination partners to navigate a rebound from record low tourism numbers. RSCVA will be sharing their
journey to their recent, highly successful rebrand, and the results of working with other agencies, the community and
properties toward a common goal. In alliance with RSCVA, Reno-Tahoe International Airport will present the highlights of joint
effarts to increase air service to Reno Tahoe.

Grand Exposition Hall

BREAK

5:30 p.m.

Cocktails and Conversation Reception Hosted by THE ROW
Reno Ballroom

6:30 p.m.
Salute to the Industry Tribute to Governor Sandoval
Reno Ballroom

018 Nevada Global Tourism Summit | SILVER LEGACY NOVEMBER 12-14, 2018



CONFERENCE — DAY TWO

Wednesday, Nov. 14, 2018
7:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Registration Desk Open
Grande Exposition Hall Level

7:00a.m.-7:45a.m.
Mindfulness/Yoga Session

8:00-9:00 a.m.

Networking Breakfast
Grand Exposition Hall Salon

9:00 a.m. - 10:00 a.m.

Tourism Professionals Roundtable

Hear from some of Nevada's leading professionals on topics such as experiential travel, rebranding, expanding room nights and
growth, esports, emerging technology, and other topics.

Moderator: Virginia Valentine, CEO of the Nevada Resort Association

Panelists:

Peppermill Casinos Inc. — Stephen Ascuaga, Corporate Director of Business Development

MGM Resorts Int'l. = Lee Ann Benavidez, Vice President of Transient Sales Strategy & Corporate Hotel Sales
LVCVA -TBD

RSCVA - Phil DeLone, CEQ

Lake Tahoe property - TBD

Vegas Golden Knights - TBD

Grand Exposition Hall

10:15-11:30 a.m.

“Reaching Global Audiences Through Digital Content Platforms”

Moderator: Cathy Tull, Chief Marketing Officer, LVCVA

Panelists:

Mafengwo — Mona Liu, Director of International Partnerships

Matador Network - Ross Borden, CEO and Co-founder

Meredith Travel Marketing - Trevor Meers, Editorial Content Director, Midwest Lmng
Trip Advisor - Todd Skelton, Head of Destination Marketing, Western US & Canada

11:45a.m.-1:15 p.m.
Lunch Presentation

TravelNevada’s international sales/marketing programs - 4 international sales reps {Australia, China, India, Latin America)
Grand Exposition Hall

2018 Nevada Global Tourizm Summit | SILVER LEGACY NOVEMBER 12-14, 2018



1:30 p.m. = 2:30 p.m. (1/2-hour each)

Learning Labs

Topics/Speakers:

Connectivity ~ Laura Fernandez, Pandora

Working with Influencers - Lauren Cleland, Director of Digital Marketing, Visit Savannah

Tools and Trends in Soctal Media — Anthony Badowich & Chris Boghigian, Campaign Managers, Ad Parlor
Silver Baron C, D, E

2:30 p.m. (coffee, tea and snacks)
Networking/Refreshment Break
Exhibit Area

3:00 p.m. —5:30 p.m.
Nevada Media and Sales Marketplace
Grand Exposition Hall C

5:30 p.m. = 7:00 p.m.

TravelNevada Closing Reception
Novi - Eldorado

018 Nevada Global Tourism Summit | SILVER LEGACY NOVEMBER 12-14, 2018



POST-CONFERENCE FAM/PRESS TRIPS

Sales — Lake Tahoe/Virginia City
Media — Carson Valley/Lake Tahoe

Thursday, Nov. 15, 2018
International buyers/media leave Reno traveling to Lake Tahoe with TravelNevada PR/sales teams

Friday, Nov. 16, 2018
FAM continues

Saturday, Nov. 17, 2018
FAM continues

Sunday, Nov. 18, 2018
FAM departs Northern Nevada

2018 Nevada Global Tourism Summit | SILWVER LEGACY NOVEMBER 12-14, 2018



NEVADA: s

)
e & it g
. o 7

GGTS Post FAM
November 14 - 18, 2018




FAM ITINERARY

" I...
L
.s-

Wednesday, November 14 e e

- —— — -

3 ':_L|. } ot |
7:00 p.m. Depart for Lake Tahoe
8:15p.m. Arrive at Hard Rock Hotel for a dessert
reception followed by hotel check in

Thursday, November 15

7:30a.m. Breakfast at Edgewood Lake Tahoe followed
by site visit

9:30 a.m. Cultural Lake Tahoe site experience

11:30a.m.  Board M.S. Dixie Boat Cruise

Noon Ltunch on the M.S. Dixie

2:30 p.m. Depart for Genoa, Carson Valley

3:30 p.m. Tour River Fork Ranch, followed by Genoa :
tour: Pink House; Mormon Station; Courthouse Museum; and Genoa 8ar

4:45p.m. Depart to Bently Heritage Distillery

5:00 p.m. Tour Bently Heritage Distillery

6:00 p.m. Check into hotel (TBD)

7:00 p.m. Dinner at Overland Restaurant

Friday, November 16

8:00 a.m. Breakfast at hotel

9:00 a.m. Depart for Virginia City

10:15a.m.  Trolley tour & walking tour
11:30a.m.  Lunch Virginia City at Delta Saloon
12:30 p.m.  Depart Virginia City

1:30 p.m. Arrive at the Automobile Museum
3:00 p.m. Depart for Amtrak Train Depot
4:00 p.m. Amtrak train ride to Elko

8:30 p.m. Arrive at Elko

9:30 p.m. Check in to Ramada Hotel & Casino

Saturday, November 17

8:00 a.m. Breakfast at Ramada Hotel & Casino

9:00 a.m. Depart for California Trail Center

10:30a.m.  Depart for Northeastern Nevada Museum

11:30a.m.  Tour: Western Folklife Center; IM Capriolas;
Cowboy Arts & Gear Museum




1:00 p.m.
2:15 p.m.
2:45p.m.
3:00 p.m.
5:00 p.m.

6:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.

Lunch at Star Hotel with Basque dancers
Depart for Wells

Tour the Trails of the 4%'ers

Depart for West Wendover

Arrive at West Wendover for meet and
greet tour followed by slot tournament
Check in Red Garter Hotel

Dinner at Red Garter Steakhouse

Sunday, November 18

Breakfast at Red Garter Hotel
Depart for Salt Lake City

Stop at Bonneville Salt Flats -
Arrive to Salt Lake City Airport i e ST L
Recommended flight departure after 1:00 p.m. &

7:00 a.m.
8:00 a.m.
2:30a.m.
11:00 a.m.
1:00 p.m.




L 4

L




Nevada Governor’s Global Tourism Summit Media Tour
“Detox/Retox”
Nov. 14 — 18, 2018

Wednesday, Nov. 14

5:30 p.m. Summit closing reception at Novi

7 p.m. Tour and mini-treatments at brand-new Spa at the Silver Legacy

Thursday, Nov. 15

9am. Breakfast
10:30a.m. Check out of hotel and transfer to Carson Valley

11:30a.m. Tour of Bently Ranch Distillery with heavy apps

1:30 p.m. Hike or drive/walk to hotel

3:30 p.m. Check into hotel

5p.m. Table games and cocktails (if a casino property) or free time to swim (if David Walley's)
7 p.m. Dinner

Friday, Nov. 16

9a.m. Breakfast

10:30 a.m. Check out of hotel and depart for North Lake Tahoe

11a.m. Weather-permitting, brief hike
1p.m. Healthy lunch at Hyatt Regency Lake Tahoe, and check in
Afternoon activity TBD

Free time to enjoy the heated outdoor pool or other hotel amenities

7 p.m, Dinner



Saturday, Nov. 17

7:30a.m. Optional: Yoga session

8:30 a.m. Breakfast

10a.m. Check out and depart for Reno
ila.m. Check into hotel

12:30p.m. Lunch

2 p.m. Downtown Reno Wine Walk
Free time until dinner

7 p.m. Dinner at the Peppermill

After-dinner tour of spa and mini-treatments

Sunday, Nov. 18
Flights home



Agency Reports

DON'

ENC
"?

NEVADA

TravelNevada.com







NEVADA DIVISION OF TOURISM
FOURTH QUARTER (APRIL THROUGH JUNE), FY18 REPORT

KEY INITIATIVES

1. EVOLVE THE BRAND

Research-Driven Integrated Marketing

Contracts for Integrated Marketing Agencies of Record were approved on June 19,
2018. Fahlgren Mortine retained contracts for Public Relations and External
Communication and Media Buying. Noble Studios was awarded Web and Digital
Development. BVK was awarded Creative Development and Execution. Each contract
begins July 1, 2018 and extends four years. Following the contract approvals, all
agencies were introduced to the Nevada Commission on Tourism and participated in a
daylong onboarding with Division of Tourism staff.

A letter of intent was sent to Tourism Economics tor award of RFP 10TCA-S114 for the
Economic Impact/Traveler Spending Study.

Paid Advertising/Creative Development

In partnership with Meredith Media, TravelNevada produced the inaugural Nevada Arts,
Culture and Heritage Guide. With support from the Nevada Ants Council, the guide was
polybagged and distributed with Midwest Living Magazine. Additionally, the Division of
Tourism has distributed the guide locally and in west Coast urban shopping areas and
through the Nevada Museum locations. The guide is enhanced with an augmented reality
cover and a website experience.

TravelNevada’s new commercial spot featuring ranger David Low in Spring Mountain
State Park in southern Nevada began in broadcast on April 16, 2018.

Digital Development

The last quarter rounded out a nearly four-year contract with Fahlgren Mortine for digital
services. Final updates included backend development to the elastic search functionality,
hosting/storage migration, completion of the online press room, and numerous creative
developments. Additionally, staff worked with Noble Studios through an extensive
education and onboarding process.

Destination Analysts completed a website and mobile app usability study. Noble Studios
will use these results as well as their own assessment to determine upcoming website
developments.

Public Relations

TravelNevada hosted a media event in Manhattan, NY, on April 25, with individual media
appointments the following day, Nevada tourism partners who attended included the Las
Vegas Territory, Reno-Tahoe Territory, the RSCVA, the Carson Valley CVA, the
Peppermill resort-casino, the Atlantis resort-casino, Forever Resonts, Papilion Grand
Canyon Helicopters, Las Vegas Monorail, the Mok Museum, and the Neon Museum.
Partners had the opportunity to meet and network with the journalists, which included
Skift, TravelSquire.com, CNN, Conde Nast, Family Traveler, Travel + Leisure, Family
Circle, Endless Vacation, and numerous freelance journalists.

1|Page



TravelNevada was a finalist for the Public Relations Society of America Silver Anvil
award in overall integrated marketing. Siaff attended the awards dinner and took home a
national recognition for the “Don’t Fence Me In" campaign. Staff took advantage of the
location of the awards dinner, New York, to meet with journalists from publications
including Martha Stewart Living, Time, and Travel + Leisure.

TravelNevada PR staff attended IPW in May and participated in the trade show's full-day
Media Marketplace, as well as taking media appointments throughout the show. Staff
scheduled appoiniments with top-tier media from the eight global markets in which the
agency actively markets.

TravelNevada sponsored travel vignettes to be aired on The Weather Network in
Canada. The vignettes were shot in southern Nevada in May to be aired in the fall when
Canadian travelers are typically searching for warm-weather destinations. Locations
include; Lake Mead/Boulder City, Cathedral Gorge State Park, and Spring Mountains
Ranch State Park.

Social Media

TravelNevada's following on social platforms is steadily growing, despite continual
changes in algorithms that serve our content to our followers. Facebook followers
increased from 152,900 to 160,793 over the fourth quarter of FY18. To be expected, paid
posts are showing a far greater engagement and each than organic:

Post Reach
The numbet of people who had any posts iom youwt Pane enles thelf screen

We continued to experiment with Instagram stories and launched a series of stories to
highlight each of the 10 road trip routes featured on the website.

In-state Familiarization and Press Trips

Multiple media tours were conducted in June, including a domestic influencer tour, a UK
media tour, French media tour, and Canadian media tour. Much of the focus was on
northern Nevada where the weather is conducive to outdoor activities and rural
destinations.

2|Page



In April, TravelNevada hosted 4 top tour operators from India on a fam of Reno, Tahoe,
Carson Valley and Virginia City. This tour began in Los Angeles, with a stay in Las Vegas
and ended in Northern Nevada. Guests experienced the Gondolas at Heavenly Village in
Tahoe, a sunset cruise to Emerald Bay, walking tour of Genoa, The Virginia City Outlaws
in VC, a trolley tour and shopping along C Street. In Reno, our guests visited 3 hotels,
enjoyed a walk along the Truckee River, and dined with the RSCVA. The trip ended with
a soak in a hot springs tub and shopping. Our Northern Nevada partners assisted with
putting together this memorable trip. All participants were pleased with the area and will
return o India ready to sell the region to their clients.

Travel Nevada hosted our Latin American representatives from Global Marketing and
Sales (GMS) team in country representatives, and invited travel trade managers on our
Nevada FAM. Participants from Mexico, Colombia, Brazil, Argentina and Chile traveled
from Las Vegas to Cathedral Gorge, Great Basin, Ely, Elko, Virginia City, Carson City
and Lake Tahoe. This was the first time for most of them to travel through our state and
learn more about what we have to offer. This was a very successful FAM, through all
Nevada territories. Our GMS representatives will be maore prepared to make
presentations about Nevada within their countries and our travel trade managers will be
more equipped to consider and offer our Nevada products.,

TravelNevada hosted a United Kingdom familiarization tour for eight tour operators from
England and Scotland as well as a journalist from Travel Weekly London. The trip
originated in Las Vegas and ended in Reno with overnight stays in Las Vegas, Ely, Elko,
Reno and Incline Village. Participants were able to visit attractions such as Cathedral
Gorge, Great Basin National Park, Lehman Caves, The Loneliest Road in America,
Eureka Opera House, Lamoille Canyon, the Ruby 360 Lodge and Lake Tahoe. Surveys
have been sent out to all of the participants for their comments, preliminary feedback has
been very positive so far.

Brand USA Cooperative Marketing

TravelNevada received results from our Brand USA Canada Expedia Campaign, which
ran during the months of March through April. The campaign resulted in 27,015 booked
room nights and 3 million digital impressions with Expedia. The promotion helped create
new awareness of Nevada in Canada and retargeted Nevada shoppers who have yet to
book.

TravelNevada finalized the FY19 buy with BrandUSA, which encompasses eleven
programs and touches potential visitors in 21 countries.

Domestic Sales Qutreach

TravelNevada atiended GTM West in Las Vegas over the dates of May 14 — 16. Over
100 domestic tour operators and agents were in attendance for this appointment based
show held at the Cosmopolitan Hotel. TravelNevada had 55 pre-scheduled appointments
and had several networking opportunities during the show program. All leads were
shared with our Nevada partners.

TravelNevada hosted a sales mission in Boise, Idaho embracing the “Don't Fence Me In”
motto. The event was held at the Old Boise Penitentiary and 18 suppliers were “locked
up" in cell block 4. Each of the 44 patticipating agents visited each supplier in their cells
and learned about their offerings. After “visiting hour” the group was treated to dinner and
prizes.

3|Page



International Sales Qutreach

Staff attended International Pow Wow (IPW) in May in Denver. IPW is the travel
industry's premier international marketplace and the largest generator of travel to the
U.S. For the first time, several Nevada DMOs, hotels and attractions were located in one
spot to make a larger impact. The response was overwhelmingly positive. With the
enhanced exhibit size, TravelNevada accommodated over a hundred scheduled industry
appointments, expanding the awareness of Nevada with international travel buyers.
Eftorts will continue next year as we ramp up for the 2020 event, being held in Las
Vegas.

’rﬂavﬂﬁmﬁ\ |

. m

This is the largest event held in the U.S. that has a focus of International Inbound
tourism. Although we attend each year, this is the first year that Marketing has partnered
with our Sales and PR teams to design and create a significant Nevada exhibit. The end
result was outstanding, offering an excellent combination of visual and video components
and new brochure maierials. Also, with the increased booth size, TravelNevada was able
to accommodate four sets of appointments on the schedule. This allowed us to increase
our overall number of appointments from about 77 to about 103, expanding the
awareness of Nevada with travel buyers.

TravelNevada led a sales mission to the United Kingdom featuring Glasgow, Manchester
and London. We assembled a contingent of representatives from throughout the state.
We were joined by the Reno-Tahoe Territory, Grand Canyon Scenic Airlines, Cowboy
Country Territory, Cirque du Soleil, Hard Rock Hotel and Casino Lake Tahoe, Las Vegas
Territory, and Terry Fator.

4|Page



The mission included a Glasgow blogger/influencer breakfast followed by a consumer
event featuring the Nevada VR experience at the Barrhead Travel Agency. That event
was followed up by a travel agent evening training mixer with over 50 travel agents from
the area in attendance. We hosted another travel agent training event in Manchester,
where we hosted more than 45 agents and the partners were able to present their
destination/attraction to the agents in a fun game show style contest.

The final destination on our itinerary was London, where we were able to have one-on-
one meetings with the top product managers, giving our partners an opportunity to meet
with the primary decision-makers of their respective travel companies. The mission
ended with a hosted breakfast for the top travel journalists in the London area. Sales
mission partners met with journalists and discussed inspiration for future story ideas.

TravelNevada planned and hosted a Media/Trade Sales Mission to Latin America. In
Mexico City, we held a breakfast with media and key trade partners, with media one on
one appointments. A group lunch was hosted in Mexico City, with livestream Skype
broadcasted for Nevada partners. During the livestream, Teri Laursen was in front of the
Welcome to Las Vegas sign, and other tourism industry partners were broadcast from
other iconic destination locations.

In Santiago, Chile, we had meetings with television personalities and a TV
blogger/influencer, and a dinner for key media and trade partners. We again held the live
broadcast with our Nevada partners, which was very interactive. In Buenos Aires,
Argentina, we had television and radio interviews, with dinner for top media and trade.
This Nevada Mission was our first major event in the market with our new representation
company, Global Marketing and Sales (GMS.)

2. ENHANCE PARTNERSHIPS

Staff continued to support the upcoming Truckee Meadows Community College
Hospitality program by participating in press conferences and informing the industry of
developments.

Staff attended the World Men's Curling Championship, held in Las Vegas March 31-
April 8. As part of a sponsorship package, Nevada Division of Tourism hosted a table for
visitors to receive information and collateral on the state. This is an opportunity to tell
travelers about the many points of interest across the state, so they can plan a return trip
or extend their travel route home. Many attendees are international, particularly
Canadian,

TravelNevada hosted more than 200 tourism volunteers and professionals from across
the state at the 28th annual Rural Roundup held in Tonopah, Nevada. Attendees had the
opportunity to explore Tonopah’s many hidden treasures including the Historic Tonopah
Mining Park, the Tonopah Cemetery, the Mizpah Hotel and the Belvada. Educational
sessions included tips on interacting with elected officials to boost tourism, responsible
drone photography, Geotourism, social media and more. Keynote speaker Bodine
Balasco wowed the audience with his “Vision Created Reality” presentation which
included interactive comedy and magic. Next year's Rural Roundup will be held in Fallon
April 10 - 12, 2019.

5|Page



Industry Partner Portal

The marketing department of Division on Tourism continues to attend territory meetings
in an outreach effort to engage tourism partners to better utilize TravelNevada.com to
amplify their business messages. Additional visits this quarter included visits to rural
southern Nevada communities (Boulder City, Laughlin, Mesquite} to collect content and
educate partners on the opportunities available to them. This resulted in new
partnership in those communities, new photo assets, and roughly three dozen updated
listings.

The partner portal continues to generate new and active partners, at roughly 50 updates
per quarter.

3. ADVOCATE FOR THE INDUSTRY

Staff worked with the Lieutenant Governor's office on a video production that featured
local businesses particularly connected to tourism. The two-day shoot included interviews
at each location: Midtown Murals, Reno; The Depot; Reno; M.S. Dixie Il, Zephyr Cove;
Nevada State Railroad Museum, Carson City; Gold Hill Hotel and Virginia City; Frey
Ranch Estate, Fallon; Stillwater National Wildlife Refuge, Fallon; and Grimes Point,
Fallon. The clips will be used on social media and in the Tourism Means More
campaign.

As a member of the U.S. Travel Association's Communications Advisory Committee, staff
attended the committee's semi-annual meeting in May in conjunction with IPW. Topics on
the agenda included international visitation figures and projections, defending tourism
promotion funding, engagement with the Trump Administration, Visa Waiver, and
interpreting the EU’s General Data Protection Regulation. All of these issues directly
impact state tourism promotion.

4. ENGAGE STAKEHOLDERS

Grants

At the commission meeting held June 25, 2018, the Nevada Commission on Tourism
approved the expenditure of $1,006,203 for FY19 1%t Cycle Rural Marketing Grants to the
recipients as outlined in the staff recommendations. TravelNevada received 216
applications associated with FY2019 1 Cycle Rural Marketing Grant Program from 69
organizations requesting $1,994,081. Grant awards included one first-time applicant.

Sister Agency Integration

As part of an ongoing integrated effort with State Parks, staff toured the Walker River
State Recreation Area. Communication continues with State Parks to collaborate and
amplify consistent messaging for marketing of the new park.

As mentioned above, in partnership with Meredith Media, TraveiNevada produced the
inaugural Nevada Arts, Culture and Heritage Guide. With support from the Nevada
Arts Council, the guide was polybagged and distributed with Midwest Living Magazine.
Additionally, the Division of Tourism has distributed the guide locally and in west Coast
urban shopping areas and through the Nevada Museum locations. The guide is
enhanced with an augmented reality cover and a website experience.

6|Page



On April 13" the Division hosted a major event to celebrate the completion of the new
railroad overpass on I-11 at Railroad Pass in Henderson/Boulder City. Governor
Brian Sandoval drove a ceremonial silver spike and joined 200 local, state, federal
officials and invited guests to ride the first train over the new bridge. Media coverage in
print, TV and radio was extensive and positive. The event resulted in significant interest
on the part of Boulder city elected officials and follow-up presentations were made to
Boulder City Council and the mayor. Tourism participated in the event and designed
collateral for the occasion.

Air Service

TravelNevada Interim Director, David Peterson, and Interim Deputy Director, Brenda
Nebesky, attended the Reno Air Services Cornmittee Meeting on June 11, and requested
reinstatement of voting privileges for TravelNevada. Discussion of the RASC
organization’s mission and vision were a focus of the agenda. TravelNevada leadership
is looking forward to involvement in the board's mission, as well as the efforts of their
marketing committee.

5. RUN AN EFFECTIVE BUSINESS

Contracts for City of Fallen (2019 Rural Roundup Host Conference Site), CCS
Presentation Systems (Laxalt Chambers AV System), Circus and Eldorado Joint
Venture (2018 Governor's Global Tourism Summit Host Hotel), East Public Relations
{Governor's Global Tourism Summit Conference Planner), Fahlgren Mortine (Public
Relations and Media Buying), BVK (Creative Development), Noble Studios (Web/Digital
Development) and OmniTrak Group, Inc. (Domestic Visitor Study) were approved at the
June meeting of the Board of Examiners).

All invoices received during the quarter were processed accordingly and for contract
payments, with contract authority.

The agency operated within the Legislatively Approved budget.

Nevada Magazine

The Magazine published our May/June and July/August editions during this quarter,
featuring stories on Tonopah's' revitalization, transitory trains, the history of the Carson
City Mint, Ely Air Races, Reno's founding history, and the railroad restorations at the
Carson City Railroad Museum. The agency also started the Silver State Scavenger Hunt,
conducted voting for Nevada's “Best Of" and started solicitation for the Great Nevada
Picture Hunt.

Publisher traveled to Tonopah to attend a celebration of their Best Of winners and to give
them several boxes of magazines containing their Tonopah story.

The agency held its 4th Focus event with over 70 attendees that included a morning of
workshops and an afternoon field trip to Silver Saddle Ranch. The event features
professional photographers and marketing experts teaching new techniques and ways to
market your work. Nevada Magazine received positive feedback from all the participants
and have plans to conduct an event in Las Vegas in the fall.

7|Page



The annual Rides Guide was produced and printed with distribution to all the agency's
motorcycle outlets as well as RV parks and Visitors Bureaus. Advertising sales was up
14% over last year's edition.

Editorial staff attended the Goldfield Visitor Center opening weekend. The agency had a
booth at the Made In Nevada Marketplace, selling over $700 in merchandise.

We conducted a postcard subscriber mailing that has not met expectations as of this
date. However, the solicitation also included “Everywhere Small Business” - a programs
that tracks website visitors and follows them with ads for six months, encouraging them to
make the decision to subscribe to the magazine. That program is ongoing and we are
receiving new purchases on a daily basis.

Next quarter will include several print jobs as well as the sales and production of our
Bridal Guide.

B|Page



TOURISM DEVELOPMENT FUND (B/A 1522)
BUDGET SUMMARY ACTUAL VS WORK PROGRAM

FISCAL YEAR 2018
FY2018 FY2018 FY2018
G.L DESCRIPTION ACTUAL WORK PROGRAM SURPLUSHSHORTFALL)
RECEIPTS & FUNDING
2511 Balance Forward From Pravious Yaar (Beginning Cash Balance) 7,185,130 7,185,130 0
3301 Lodging Tax 24,629,235 25,012,438 (383,203)
3700 Registration Fees 34610 36.580 {(1,970)
4203  Prior Year Refunds 1.157 1.799 (642)
Total Revenue 31,850,132 32,235,947 (385,815)
EXPENDITURES

01  Parsonnel Services 2,365,297 2,488,834 123,537
02  Out-of-State Travel 47,494 48,907 1,413
03  In-State Travel 38,089 30,725 636
04  Operating 37,377 371,507 130
14  Quiside Postaga 146,080 154,539 8,459
21 Trans to Mation Pictures_ 659,418 660,003 585
22  Trans to Nevada Magazine 0 o 1}
26  Information Services 246,311 246,839 528
30 Training 6,510 6,531 21
31 Marksting/Advertising 15,165,577 15,201,887 38,410
36 Transler to State Parks. 508,131 509,131 0
40  Rural Grant Program 1,650,000 1,650,000 0
42 Govemor's Washington Otfice 108,511 106,611 0
50  Tourism Davalogmem Grants 100,000 100,000 0
60  Lost City Museum 183,875 216,946 22,971
81  Nevada Historical Society 250,993 341,981 50,868
62 NV Stata Museum - Carson City 776,265 842,213 65,948
63 NV State Museum - Las Vegas 799,611 823,881 24,270
B4  State Railroad Museums 226,744 521,297 204 553
685  Ans Council 1,126,266 1,173,287 47,021
66 Indian Commission 52,861 73,062 20,201
67  Dwision of Museums 248,907 252,313 5,406
82 DHRM Cost Allocation 11,538 11,538 0
87  Purchasing Assessment 37,878 37,878 0
88  State Cost Allocation 84,985 84,995 0
B9  AG Cost Aliccation Plan 43,196 43,196 0
Total Expenditures 25,303,024 26,006,081 703,057

86 Reserve (Ending Cash Balance) £.547,108 6,229,866 317,242
Tourism Operating Budget 20,314,342 20,485,476 171,134
Total Transfers - 4,998,682 5,520,605 531,923




______ ( } { ); 1 i L Jd L | L J . Jd




Nevada Division of Tourism

FY19 Purchasing RFP/RFQ Schedule

September 2018

RFP - 2019 Governor's Global Tourism Summit Host Site

October 2018

RFQ - Transportation Services

November 2018

RFP - International Office Sales and Public Relations Representation — India

December 2018
RFP - International Office Sales and Public Relations Representation — United Kingdom

RFP - International Office Sales and Public Relations Representation — France

January 2019
RFP - International Office Sales and Public Relations Representation — Germany
RFP - International Office Sales and Public Relations Representation — Australia

RFP - Integrated Marketing Effectiveness Study RFP

February 2019
RFP - International Office Sales and Public Relations Representation — Canada

RFP - International Office Sales and Public Relations Representation — Japan/South Korea






